Public Document Pack

Licensing Sub-Committee

Thursday 27 June 2013 at 10.00 am

To be held at the Town Hall, Pinstone
Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH

The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend

Membership

Councillors John Robson (Chair), Clive Skelton and/Philip Wood
George Lindars-Hammond (Reserve)

Sheffield

City Council




PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING

The Licensing Committee carries out a statutory licensing role, including licensing for
taxis and public entertainment.

As a lot of the work of this Committee deals with individual cases, some meetings
may not be open to members of the public.

A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council's website at
www.sheffield.gov.uk. You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance. The
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday, or you can ring on telephone no. 2734552.

You may not be allowed to see some reports because they contain confidential
information. These items are usually marked * on the agenda.

If you require any further information please contact Harry Clarke on 0114 273 6183
or email harry.clarke@sheffield.gov.uk.

FACILITIES

There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the
Town Hall. Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms.

Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the
side to the main Town Hall entrance.



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE AGENDA
27 JUNE 2013

Order of Business

Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements
Apologies for Absence

Exclusion of Public and Press

To identify items where resolutions may be moved to exclude the press and
public

Declarations of Interest

Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be considered
at the meeting

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 - Sexual
Entertainment Venues - Spearmint Rhino, 60 Brown Street, S1 2BS
Report of the Chief Licensing Officer.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS

New standards arrangements were introduced by the Localism Act 2011. The new
regime made changes to the way that members’ interests are registered and
declared.

If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI)
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:

. participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become
aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate
further in any discussion of the business, or

. participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a
member of the public.

You must:

. leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct)

. make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any
meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes
apparent.

. declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28
days, if the DPI is not already registered.

If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.

. Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or
gain, which you, or your spouse or civil partner, undertakes.

. Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests.

Page 1 1



. Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner
(or a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial
interest) and your council or authority -

- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be
executed; and
- which has not been fully discharged.

. Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner,
have and which is within the area of your council or authority.

e« Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your
civil partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a
month or longer.

«  Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) -
- the landlord is your council or authority; and
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner,
has a beneficial interest.

. Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in
securities of a body where -

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area
of your council or authority; and

(b) either
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your
spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

Under the Council’'s Code of Conduct, members must act in accordance with the
Seven Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; accountability;
openness; honesty; and leadership), including the principle of honesty, which says
that ‘holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to
their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that
protects the public interest’.

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life.

Page 2 2



You have a personal interest where —

. a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s
administrative area, or

. it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with
whom you have a close association.

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to
you previously, and has been published on the Council’s website as a downloadable
document at -http://councillors.sheffield.gov.uk/councillors/register-of-councillors-
interests

You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take.

In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought. The Monitoring
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’'s Standards
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation.

Further advice can be obtained from Lynne Bird, Director of Legal Services on 0114
2734018 or email lynne.bird@sheffield.gov.uk

Page 3 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda Item 5

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL
Licensing Committee Report

Report of: Chief Licensing Officer, Head of Licensing

Date: 27" June 2013 at 10:00 a.m.

Subject: Schedule 3 of the Local Government Miscellaneous
Provisions Act 1882 (as amended) - Sexual

Entertainment Venues

Author of Report: Andy Ruston — 203 7752

Summary: To consider an application for the renewal of a sexual
entertainment licence

Recommendations: That Members note the content of the report and any
further information supplied.

Background Papers: Attached to this report.

Category of Report: OPEN

Page 5



REPORT OF THE CHIEF LICENSING OFFICER, Ref No 38/13

HEAD OF LICENSING, TO THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

Schedule 3 of the Local Government Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1982
(as amended) - Sexual Entertainment Venues

Premises —-Spearmint Rhino, 60 Brown Street, Sheffield $1 28BS

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

4.0

4.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To consider an application for the renewal of a sexual entertainment venue licence
made under Schedule 3, Section 10, of the Local Government Miscellaneous
Provisions Act 1982.

THE APPLICATION
The applicant is Sonfield Developmenis Limited.

The application, which was received on 26" April 2013, is attached to this report
labelled Appendix ‘A’.

REASOMS FOR REFERRAL

Objections concerning the application have been received from the following:-

a) Interested parties Appendix ‘B’
A copy of the standard conditions are attached at Appendix ‘C’.

A copy of the conditions attached to the current Sexual Entertainment Venue
Licence for Spreamint Rhino are attached at Appendix ‘D'. The applicant has not
applied to add any further conditions or to amend the conditions cuirently attached to
the licence.

The hearing will be held in two parts.

Objectors have been informed of the hearing and objections will be heard in Part
One of the hearing.

The applicant and his representative have been informed of the hearing and the
applicant will be invited to present the application in part two of the hearing.

Copies of the invites sent to the applicant and objector are attached fo this report
labelled Appendix ‘E'.

FINANCIAL WIPLICATIONS

There are no specific financial implications arising from this application. However,
additional costs may be incurred should the matter go to appeal. In such an
gventuality it may not be possible fo recover all these costs. The impact of these
additional costs (if any) will be kept under review and may be subject of a further
report during the year.

Page 6



5.0

51

5.2

53

5.4

55

56

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

THE LEGAL POSITION

Section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009 amends Paragraph 2A of Schedule 3
of the Local Government Miscellaneous Provision Act 1982 and introduces a new
category of sex establishments called “sexual entertainment venues” which allows
licensing authorities to regulate lap dancing clubs and simifar venues.

Sheffield City Council has adopted the Sexval Entertainment Venue Provisions
under Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provision) Act 1982 as
amended by Section 27 of the Policing & Crime Act 2009 so as to have effect as
from the 1% May, 2011, in relation to the whole of the Sheffield City Council area for
the purposes of regulating premises deemed to be sexual entertainment venues.

Section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009 amends Schedule 3 to the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 and reclassifies lap dancing clubs
as sexual entertainment venues and gives local authorities in England and Wales the
power to regulate such venues.

For the purposes of these new provisions "sexual entertainment venue” is defined
as:

‘any premises at which relevant entertainment is provided before a live audience for
the financial gain of the organiser or the entertainer”.

The meaning of “relevant entertainment” is defined as;

“any live performance or live display of nudity which is of such a nature that, ignoring
financial gain, it must reasonably be assumed to be provided solely or principally for
the purpose of sexuaily stimulating any member of an audience (whether by verbal
or other means)".

The Licensing Authority will have regard to the Home Office Guidance when

exercising its functions in order to promote best practice and consistency across
England and Wales.

HEARINGS REGULATIONS

The hearing procedure is set out in Schedule 3 of the Local Government
Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1982 at Section 10. A copy of the hearing procedure is
attached at Appendix 'F’.

APPEALS

In the event that an application for the grant, renewal or transfer of a sexual

entertainment venue licence is refused, the applicant may appeal to the Magistrates’
Court within 21 days of receiving notification of the decision.

Page 7



8.0

8.1

8.0

9.1

82

9.3

9.4

If the application was refused on paragraph (c) or (d) of the discretionary grounds
specified in Appendix ‘G’, there is no right of appeal.

There is no right of appeal for objectors where an application is granted.
RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members carefully consider the application and / or any objections made and
take such steps as the Committee consider necessary for the promotion of the

Council's Sexual Entertainment Venue Policy and with regard to the Home Office
Guidance.

OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE
To renew the sexual entertainment venue licence in the terms requested.

To renew the sexual entertainment venue licence, with additional or amended
conditions.

To defer the application.

To refuse the whole or part of the application.

Stephen Lonnia

Chief Licensing Officer

Head of Licensing

Business Strategy and Regulation
Place Portfolio

Block C, Staniforth Road Depot
Sheffield S9 3GZ

19" June 2013

Page 8



APPENDIX A

Page 9



SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL
Schedule 3, Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982

Application for Grant of a
Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence

Notes to Applicant:
All questions must be answered unless otherwise stated.
If relevant guestions are not answered, the application will be deemed incomplete
and returned to the Applicant.

WE HEREBY APPLY to the Sheffield City Council for the grant of a licence to use a
premises as a Sexual Entertainment Venue.

A. THE APPLICANT

a1 s the Applicant:
a. | Anindividual? [ ] | Answer question 2
b. | A company or other corporate body? v [ x] | Answer question 3 & 4
c. | A partnership or other unincorporated body? [ ] | Answer question §

Q2 | Answer only where the applicant is an individual.
Full Name of the Applicant a
Applicants permanent private n/a
address
Occupation n/a
(during preceding six months).
Tetephone No. n/a

You need to compiete Annex A. Now go to question 5

Q3 _| Answer only if the Applicant is a company or other corporate body.

Full Name of the Applicant Sonfield Developments Li)nited
Applicant’s trading address 60 Brown Street

Sheffield

$1288 7

Applicant’s registered address (if different)?
c/o Hillier Hopkins LLP

64 Clarendon Road
Watford
WD17 1DA

What is the registered number of the Applicant? 4315210

Has the Applicant previously been known by any other No\/
name, and if so, what?

47391161

Page 10

“



What are the full names of the Director: John Speq}wt, Kathy Verche/r/

Directors and Company , _ ,
Secretary? Company Secretary: Spearmint Rhino Secretarial
: Services Limited

Are any persons responsible for Yes [ ] No [x]
the management of the Applicant
other than the Directors and
Company Secretary? If so, state

their names

For all persons with a (1) Spearmint Rhino Ventures (UK) Limited
shareholding greater than 10% in | /o Hillier Hopkins LLP

the Applicant state the names, scaffﬁ;e”don Road

and registered address where it | wp17 1pDA

is a body corporate of all persons Y

and their percentage
shareholding at the date of
application.

For any body corporate with a Spearmint Rhino Secretarial Services Limited {Secretary)

shareholding holding greater John Specht
than 10% in the Applicant, state thy Veroh
the names of its Directors and Kathy Vercher
Company Secretary.

All individuals named above need to complete Annex A. Now go to question 5

Q4 | Answer only if the Applicant is a partnership or other unincorporated body:

Full Name of the Applicant n/a
Applicants trading address nfa
What are the names, of the Applicants Partners? n/a

Are there persons responsible for the management of | /a
the Applicant other than the Partners? If so, state their
names.

Has the Applicant previcusly been known by any other | n/a
name, and if so, what?
All individuals named above need to complete Annex A. Now go to question 6

Q5 | Wili the business for which a licence is sought be Yes|[ ] No|[x]
managed by or carried on for the benefit of a person
other than those already mentioned in answer to Q2 to /

Q4 above. This includes third parties such as funders
and suppliers where the arrangements are not on
normal arm'’s fength commercial terms or any persons
who may share in the profits.

4738116-1

Page 11



If the answer is yes, state their name(s). If a body
corporate body, state their place of registration and
registered number, and the name(s), of all Directors,
the Company Secretary and those with a greater than
10% shareholding.

All individuals named above need to complete Annex A. Now go to question 6

Q6 | Has any body corporate or unincorporated named in Q3 to Q5 above:

o | Everbeen convicted of a criminal offence, issued with | Yes [ ] No[X]
a caution, or bound over to be of good behavior?
» | Ever had a grant or renewal application for a sex Yes | ] No [ x]
shop, sex cinema or sexual entertainment venue
licence refused or such licence revoked?

. Ever been the subject of insolvency proceedings? Yes| ] No[X]
» | If Yes please provide full details including dates (this
] can be done on a separate piece of paper).
/

Nr - Question 6 does not apply to individuals as they are required to answer similar
guestions in Annex A.

Q7 | Does the Applicant have a Spearmint Rhino

trading name different from v
that given in answer 2, 3 or 4
above? If so, state the trading

name.
Q8 | Does the Applicant operate any other sex shop, sex cinemaor |Yes[] No[x]

sexual entertainment venue in Sheffield whether licensed or /

not?

If so, state the name, address and type(s) of
sex establishment (e.g. sex shop, sex cinema,
sexual entertainment venue).

Notes to Applicant:

Each of the individuals named in Questions 2, 3, 4 and 5 must complete a copy
of the form attached at Annex A to this application.

| These form part of the application and must be submitted with this application.
If not, the application will not be regarded as complete and will not be
processed.
It will be rejected if not made complete within seven working days of receipt.

4739116-1

Page 12



B. THE PREMISES, VEHICLE, VESSEL OR STALL

Q8 | Is this application in respect of: Premises [
Vehicle [
Vessel [
Stall [

] Go to Question 11
/

Q10 | Answer only where the application is for a vehicle, vessel or stall

Give a description and state all
locations where the vehicle /
vessel / stall is proposed to be
located during use as a sexual n/a
entertainment venue, {If moving
please describe the route to be
taken and any places where it will
be stationary.

L Now go to question 12

[ Q11 [ Postal address of premises:;

Spearmint Rhino
60 Brown Street

Post Town: Sheffield Postcode: S12BS

Telephone Number: ¢/o 020 7339 7010 | Email Address: ajc@ijgrlaw.co.uk
v

For Q12 to Q17 reference to premises should be taken to include vehicle, vessel or
stall as appropriate.

€ | s the whole of the premises to be used as a sexual | Yes[x] Nol ]
entertainment venue? v

if not, state the use of the
remainder of the premises

State the names of those who are
responsible for the management of
the remainder of the premises

Q13 | State the nature of the Applicant's a. Owner [ ]
interest in the premises. b. Lessee (x]
C. Sub-lessee [ ]

If the Applicant is a lessee or sub-
lessee, state:
(i) the name and address of the landlord | Keith Wilson

| -~

4739116-1

Page 13



(i} the name and address of the
superior landlord (if any)

N/A

(iif) the amount of the annual rental

£165,000 /

(iv) the length of the unexpired term

15 years 5 months approximately

(v) the length of notice required to
terminate the tenancy

Not less than 6 mo/nths

Q14

State the current use of the premises

Sexual Entertainment Venue

Is there planning permission for the
premises {(or any site where a vehicle,
vessel or stall is to be placed) which
covers use as a sexual entertainment
venue?

Yes [ x] No| ]
/

If so, state the date of the planning
permission

07/01/2(}02

If not, state whether and why the use as
a sexual entertainment venue is lawful,
e.g. because there is a certificate of
lawful use, give full details.

Q15

Are the premises licensed under any
other Act, e.g. the Licensing Act 20037

Yes[x ] Nof[ ]

Provide full details:
(i) Legislation

Licensing Act 2003 ,

(i) Premises Licence Holder

Sonfield Developments Limited
s

(i)  Designated Premises

Feter Mercer

vary a licence under any other Act?

Supervisor 4
{iv) Licence number SY 0971 PR/
Does the Applicant intend to obtain or Yes[ ] No [i(]

Provide full details:
(i Legislation

(i) Type of application

(i) Licence number

Q16

Is customer access to the premises:

Directly from the street or a public
thoroughfare?

s X

From other premises?
Please provide details:

[ ]

47391161

Page 14

9



to be supervised at all times the
premises are open to the public?

Is each customer access from the street

Yes [ x] Nol ]
if the answer is No give full details of

proposed door controls and supervision:
v

Q17

Are the premises, so constructed or
adapted and laid out as to permit
access to, from and within the premises
(including WC facilities) for members of
the public who are disabled?

Yes [ x] No[ ]
If the answer is No give full details of
proposals for af;ording such access:

Q18

Are the premises being used as a sex
shop, sex cinema or sexual
entertainment venue at the date of this
application?

Yes[ X] No|[ ]
/

If the answer is Yes, state the name and
address of the body or person now
operating the business.

Name:
Sonfield Developments Limited
/

Address:

c¢fo Hillier Hopkins LLP
64 Clarendon Road
Watford '
WD17 1DA v

C. MANAGEMENT OF THE BUSINESS

State the identity of the person who
will be primarily responsible for the
day to day management of the
business at the premises.

Name:

Peter Mercer - General Manager

v

Will that person be based at the
premises and will the management of
the business there will be his/her sole
and exclusive occupation.

Yes [x ]
/

No[ ]

Which person(s) will be responsible
for the day to day management of the
business in the absence of the person

Name: Michael Dayi'd Goodwin { Manager )
ve

named above,

Name: Any Foster}RegionaI Manager)

4739116-1

Page 15



Confirm that the relief manager(s) or

one of them will be based at the

premises full time in the absence of

the Manager.

Yes [x] No[ ]
/

You should ensure that any person listed in this question is also included in Q2 to Q5
above as appropriate.

"Q20 | State all times at which the premises will be used as a Sexual Entertainment Venue
Day Start Finish Please give further details here:
Mon 00.00 00.00
Tue 00.00 00.00
Wed 00.00 00.00 State any seasonal variations:
Thur 00.00 00.00
Fri 00.00 00.00 Non-standard timings. Where you intend to
use the premises at different times from
those listed in the column on the left:
Sat 00.00 00.00
Sun 00.00 00.00
Q21 | State proposals in respect of: (A plan of the exterior must be submitted)

Exterior Signage

Nature: 1. Sign above front door
2. Window sign, logo and web address
3. Sign at side of building
Size: 1. 4ft high by 91t long
2. 6ft high by 13ftlong
3. 2dt high and 7it long

4739116-1

Page 16



Images:

Photos provided

Copy Supplied:

Yes|[x]

No[ ]

Advertising Nature: Events board next to the front door.
Size:
A1/A2 poster size
Images: Photos provided
Copy Supplied: Yes[x] Nol[]
Window Displays | Nature:
See above
Size:
Images:
Copy Supplied: Yes[x] Nof]

Q21 | State any proposals for solicitation or advertisement of business in public areas (in
doing so you should take account of the Council's Policy and the Standard Terms
and Conditions that will apply to the licence if granted) :

Fliers Images: Fliers and VIP passes distributed where legal and on
dispiay in hotels by agreement
Copy Supplied: Yes [x ] No[ ]
Business Cards Images:
Copy Supplied: Yes| ] No| ]
Other Images:
Copy Supplied: Yes| ] Nol[ ]
Q22 | What means are to be taken to prevent | The entrance foyer is visible from the outside. No

the interior of the premises being visible

areas where relevant entertainment is provided

4738116-1

Page 17

(2



to passers-by? are visible from the outside due to the location ofT
the rooms and windows being boarded or blacked

out.
Q23 | State what age restrictions are to be No-one under the age of 18 years of age will be
applied in respect of admissions, and permitted entrance.
how are these to be enforced.
. Passport/Driving Licence
In answering, state what forms of
identity will be accepted.
Q24 | State the arrangements for CCTV and The location of the CCTV is set out on the plan.

for retention of recordings.

times the business is ocpen and whether
the feed from all cameras will be
recorded.

Cameras both internal and external. All cameras
record whilst the premises is o pen for business.

. , Recordings are kept for 70 days. Copies can be
In answering, state whether all public provided to the Police or local authority subject to
areas are to be covered by CCTV at all | the Data Protection Act 1998

Q25

State whether the proposal is for full nudity
(nudity is defined as per the Councii's Policy).

Yes [ x] No [ ]

Give full details of the nature of the
enterfainment.

Lap Dancing

v In booths — see plan

Pole Dancing

v On stage - see pian

Stage Strip-tease

v on stage — see plan

Other

Anything of a like kind subject to
conditions.

State whether arrangements are proposed for
private booths or areas. if so, provide full
details (highlighted on accompanying plans),
including proposais for supervision of such
areas.

See plans. Areas are covered by door
supervisors.

Q26 | This question need not be answered in the case of renewals.
A | State proposals for preventing nuisance to residents and businesses in the vicinity:
4739116-1

Page 18



The premises has operated for a number of years with policies and practices to promote the licensing
objectives under the Licensing Act 2003. No complaints have been received. It is not proposed to
change the operation, policies or practices.

B | State proposals for promoting public safety:

See A above. Appropriate fire risk assessments and health and safety risk assessments have been
carried out and are updated as necessary.

C | State proposals for preventing crime or disorder:

See A above. CCTV and security officers will be in use.
D | State proposals for protecting children from harm;

See A above. No under 18's allowed into the premises when the licence is being used.
Appropriate signage and security. Photo 1D required if a person looks under 21.

[ £ | Set out the system for training ail All staff receive induction training involving the code of
staff in the Code of Practice for practice. A copy is provided if requested. Records of

. training are kept. Refresher training is provided.

performance, and fanforcmg Compliance monitored by security and CCTV.
comp!lance. (Note: the Code Of‘ Breaches are deait with as a disciplinary process.
Practice must be attached to this
form.)

F | Set out the system for notifying Notices placed around the premises on walls and
customers of the Rules for tables. Monitoring by CCTV and security officers.
Customers, and for monitoring and
enforcing compliance. (Nofe: the
Rules for Customers must be
aftached to this form.)

G | Set out the system for monitoring Records monitored by management. Maintained and
compliance with the venue's Policy signed by the performers where appropriate
for Welfare of Performers. (Nofe: the
Policy for Welfare of Performers
must be attached to this form.)

Q27 | Set out any further information which you wish the authority to take into account.
Include here any proposed conditions (you may attach a schedule of such
conditions) or any reason relied upon to provide an exception to the authority’s
Sexual Entertainment Venue Policy or Standard Conditions (any such application
will be referred to Licensing Sub-Committee for determination).

4739116-1

Page 19

I



Q28 | Is there any information on this form which you do not wish to be seen by members
of the public? If so, state which information and the reasons why you do not wish it
to be seen.

Personal data of individuals named in application /

Q29 Please use the checklist below to ensure you have completed all parts of the
application. Tick to confirm you have enclosed all of the required information
documents:

! have made or enclosed payment of the fee. , [ x]

I have enclosed plans of the premises (scale 1:100) that detail all the relevant  /
information including the designated performance areas, access and egress, etc. [x ]

" have enclosed a site plan detailing the location of the premises (scale 1:1250) in [x ]
.elation to the surrounding area. v

I have enclosed photograph of the proposed front elevation as existing and as [ x]
proposed. /

[ X
| have enclosed a copy of any other licences for the premises. /

[ x]
| have enclosed the Code of Practice and Disciplinary Procedure for Perlf/ormers.

[ x]
| have enclosed the Rules for Customers. /

[ x]
| have enclosed the Policy for the Welfare of Performers. /

[x ]
| have enclosed a completed Annex A for all individuals named in questions 2 to/5.
| understand and agree that | must send a copy of my complete application to the Chief | [x]
Officer of Police no later than seven days after the date of the application.
| understand that | must now advertise my application on or near the Premises for 21 [ x]

4739116-1

Page 20



| days starting with the date of the application.

I'understand that | must advertise the application in a local newspaper within seven
days after the date of the application and that a copy of the complete newspaper must
be provided to the Licensing Authority in accordance with paragraph 10(8), Schedule 3
of the Local Government {Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982.

Should the information provided in relation to this application form cease to be correct,
or if there are any changes in the information provided in the application form between
the date the application is submitted and the date it is determined, the Applicant must
advise the Licensing Authority immediately. Failure to do so may result in any licence
issued being revoked.

Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 should my
application be granted. Subject to any amendments.

liwe agree to notify the Licensing Authority should any of the information given in this | [ x]
application change.

declare that | have read and agree to abide by the standard conditions of a Sexual
Entertainment Venue Licence made by Sheffield City Council in accordance with | [x]

4739116-1

Page 21



—
Applicants are informed that any person who, in connection with an application for the
grant, renewal or transfer of a licence, makes a false statement which he knows to be
false in any material respect or which he does not believe to be true, is gquilty of an
offence and liable, on summary conviction, to a fine not exceeding £20,000.

we certify to the best of my/our knowledge and belief that the information given in this [ X]
application is complete and correct in every respect.

Name: ...JEFFREY GREEN RUSSELL LIMITED.........cocoiiiirsoooi,

Solicitors and Authorised Agents and on behalf of Sonfield Developments Ltd

Date: ... 25" April 2013, ..o e

Signature; \‘_SQ«%T\\QL‘\ ........ m@&mﬂ(’\‘ Mt‘@'{ ...........

)

.30 Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application:

Address:

Jeffrey Green Russell Limited
Waverley House
7-12 Noel Street

Postal Town: London Post Code:
W1F 8GQ

Telephone Number: 020 7 339 7010

Mobite Number;

Email Address: ajc@jgriaw.co.uk

L

Please return the fully completed form and all attachments to:
Licensing Service,

Block C, Staniforth Road Depot.

Staniforth Road

Sheffield

S9 3HD

4738116-1

Page 22



Guidance Notes for Applicants
1. Application

All questions must be answered unless otherwise stated. if relevant questions are
not answered, the application will be deemed incomplete and returned to the
Applicant.

A separate “Annex A" form must be completed by each of the individuals named in
Questions 2, 3, 4 and 6 of the application form. These must be submitted with the

application.
The correct fee should be enclosed with the application.

The application must be served on South Yorkshire Police at:

The Police Licensing Team
1st Floor

Attercliffe Police Station
60 Attercliffe Common
Sheffield

S9 2AD

No later than seven days after submitting the application to Sheffield City Council.
2, The Plan

The layout plan must show:

(a) The layout of the premises including, e.g. stage, bars, cloakroom, wc's
performance areas and dressing rooms.

(b) The extent of the boundary of the premises outlined in red.

(c) The extent of the public areas outlined in blue.

(d) Uses of different areas in the premises, e.g. performance areas and
reception.

(e) Structure or objects (including furniture) which may impact on the ability of
individuals to use exits or escape routes without impediment.

(f) Location of points of access to and egress from the premises.

(@) Any parts used in common with other premises.

(h) Position of CCTV cameras.

(i) Where the premises includes a stage or raised area, the location and height
of each stage or area relative to the floor.

() Where the premises includes any steps, stairs, elevators or lifts, the location
of the same.

{k) The location of any public conveniences, including disabled WC's.

(I} The position of any ramps, lifts or other facilities for the benefit of disabled
people.

(m)Any level changes at the entrance to or within public parts of the premises
which may be inaccessible to disabled people.

(n) The location and type of fire safety and any other safety equipment.

(0) The location of any kitchen on the premises.

(p) The location of emergency exits.

3. Public Notices

4739116-1
Page 23
i§



A notice must be displayed at, or on the premises to which the application relates for
a period of not less than 21 consecutive days from the day following the day the
application was given to the Council. The notice must be able to be conveniently
read from the exterior of the premises.

Where the premises cover an area of more than 50 square metres, a further
identical notice must be displayed every 50 metres along the external perimeter of
the premises abutting the highway.

The full regulations regarding the size, content and font to be used on public notices
can be obtained from the Licensing Service.

A notice must aiso be placed in a local newspaper circulating in the area within 7
days of serving the application on the Council (Example the Sheffield Star or
Sheffield Telegraph).

You must send a copy of the newspaper containing the advertisement as soon as is
reasonably practicable to the Licensing Section.

4, Grant of a Licence

The Council may grant to any applicant a licence for the use of a premises as a
sexual entertainment venue on such terms and conditions as specified by the

Council.

A licence will remain in force for one year, or such shorter period specified in the
licence, unless previously cancelled or revoked.

To apply for the grant of a sexual entertainment venue licence an applicant must
send to the Council;-

a) A completed application form;

b)  The fee;

c) A plan of the premises to which the application relates (to the scale of 1:100)
showing all means of ingress and egress to and from the building, layout of the
premises;

d}  Asite plan detailing the location of their premises in relation to the surrounding
area and other premises (to the scale of 1:1250);

e) Drawings showing the front elevation of the premises as existing and as
proposed (to the scale of 1;50);

And must also;

f) Display a notice at or on the premises (see section 1 above);

o)} Place a public notice in a local newspaper (see section 1 above);

h} Serve a copy of the application on the Chief Officer of Police at The Police
Licensing Team, 1st Floor, Attercliffe Police Station, 60 Attercliffe

Common, Sheffield, S9 2AD.

Application forms are available from www sheffield.gov.uk/sev.

For further information and guidance in relation to applications for a Sexual
Entertainment Venue, please see our Sexual Entertainment Venue Licensing Policy

at www.sheffield.gov.uk/sev.

4739116-1 Page 24

14



ANNEX A

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL

2013

Statutory declaration sheet for application for grant of Sexual Entertainment
Venue licence.

One of these forms must be completed by (i) the applicant;

(ii} all directors of any company
applying for a licence; and
(iii) any other person who will be

responsible for the management of the

licensed premises.

@

Q1

Full Name:

John Specht

Former Name (if any):

Position in relation to Applicant
(e.g. Director, Partner, Manager):

Vice President

Date of Birth:

Gender:

Male [x ]

Female [ ]

Permanent Residential Address:

If resident at this address for less
than 3 years, state previous address:

Q2

Have you been a resident in the
United Kingdom for more than six
months prior to the date of the
application?

Yes[x ] Nol[]

If the answer is No give the date your residency

started:

Q3

Have you ever been disqualified
from holding a sex establishment
licence (sex shop, sex cinema or
sexual entertainment venue) under
Schedule 3, Paragraph 17 of the
Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 19827

Yes[ ] No[x]
If the answer is Yes give full details:

4739138,

Page 25

0



@

Q4 | Have you ever been involved in the management of a business, whether as proprietor,
director, company secretary, partner, manager, supervisor or otherwise which has had any of
the following types of licence refused, refused on renewal, reviewed or revoked?

Sex establishment licence Yes[ ] Nol[x]
Licence for the sale of alcohol Yes[ ] Nolx ]
Licence for the provision of entertainment, Yes{ ] WNo[x}]
whether sexual or otherwise.

Personal licence under the Licensing Act 2003 Yes[ ] No[x]
If the answer is Yes to any of the above give full

details:

Q5 | Have you ever been convicted of a criminal Yes[ ] No[x]
offence, whether in the United Kingdom or If the answer is Yes please give full
elsewhere? details below:

Details of previous convictions and/or cautions
Date of Conviction | Court of Conviction Nature of Offence Sentence
4739138 _1

Page 26



Q6

To your knowledge are you currently the subject of
any criminal investigation?

Yes| |

No[x]

If the answer is Yes please give full details:

Q7

Have you ever had any civil legal action
taken against you?

Yes| |

No[x]

If the answer is Yes please give full details:

Q8

Have you ever been declared bankrupt or entered
into an arrangement with creditors or an individual
voluntary arrangement?

Yes [ |

No[x]

If the answer is Yes please give full details:

4739138 1

Page 27

@

22



@/

Q9 | Have you ever been disqualified from acting as a Yes{ ] Nol x]
company director?

[f the answer is Yes please give full details:

Q10 | Is there any other information which you believe the licensing authority would reasonably
expect notice of or you would like the licensing authority to take into account when
considering the information you have supplied?

11 | Is there any information on this Annex which you do not wish to be seen by members of the
y
public? If so, state which information and the reasons why you do not wish it to be seen.

I declare that I believe the information given above is true and complete in every respect.

4739138 |

Page 28
23



Signature:

Where the appii“cant is a body corporate or unincorporated body this application
should be signed by a partner, the secretary or a director stating in which capacity it is

signed.

4739138 1

Page 29

2%



ANNEX A /

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL

Statutory declaration sheet for application for grant of Sexual Entertainment
Venue licence.

One of these forms must be completed by

(i} the applicant;

(i} all directors of any company
applying for a licence; and

(iii) any other person who will be
responsible for the management of
the licensed premises.

Q1

Fuli Name:

Former Name (if any):

Kathy Vercher /

Position in relation to Applicant
(e.g. Director, Partner, Manager):

President and COO y

Date of Birth;

Gender:

Male [ ] Female [;(]

Permanent Residential Address:

If resident at this address for less
than 3 years, state previous
address:

Q2

Have you been a resident in the
United Kingdom for more than six
months prior fo the date of the
application?

Yes | ] No[ X]
If the answer is No give the date your residency
started;

Q3

Have you ever been disqualified
from holding a sex establishment
licence (sex shop, sex cinema or
sexual entertainment venue)
under Schedule 3, Paragraph 17
of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
19827

Yes [ ] No [ x]
If the answer is Yes give full details:

4739178_1

Page 30




Q4 | Have you ever been invelved in the management of a business, whether as
proprietor, director, company secretary, partner, manager, supervisor or otherwise
which has had any of the following types of licence refused, refused on renewal,
reviewed or revoked?

Sex establishment licence Yes[] No[x]
Licence for the sale of alcohol Yes | ] No [x ]
Licence for the provision of entertainment, Yes|[ ] No[x]
whether sexual or otherwise.

Personal licence under the Licensing Act Yes | ] No [ x]
2003

If the answer is Yes to any of the above give

fuil details:

Q5 | Have you ever been convicted of a criminal Yes| ] No [x]
offence, whether in the United Kingdom or If the answer is Yes please give full
elsewhere? details below;

Details of previous convictions and/or cautions
Date of Conviction | Court of Conviction | Nature of Offence | Sentence
(@6 | To your knowledge are you currently the Yes|[ ] No[x]
subject of any criminal investigation?
If the answer is Yes please give full details:
47391781

Page 31

26



Q7 Have you ever had any civil legal action Yes|[ ] No|[x]
taken against you?

If the answer is Yes please give full details:

Q8 | Have you ever been declared bankrupt or Yes|[ ] No [ x]
entered into an arrangement with creditors or
an individual voluntary arrangement?

If the answer is Yes please give fuil details:

Q9 | Have you ever been disqualified from acting as Yes|[ ] No [ x]

a company director?
If the answer is Yes please give full details:

Q10 | is there any other information which you believe the licensing autherity would
reasonably expect notice of or you would like the licensing authority to take into
account when considering the information you have supplied?

No

Q11 | Is there any information on this Annex which you do not wish to be seen by
members of the public? !f so, state which information and the reasons why you do
not wish it to be seen.

47381781

Page 32

@

27



]

No

Q12

| declare that | believe the information given above is true and complete in every
respect.

Name: ...Kathy Vercher............... .

Position in Organisation: ......President and COO

Date: /Ql«/ﬂé///j

Signature

Where the applicant is a body corporate or unincorporated body this
application should be signed by a partner, the secretary or a director stating
in which capacity it is signed.

4739178-1

Page 33



| (18/04/2013) Andy Foster - 4739154_1,DOGX.docx Page 1
ANNEX A /
SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL
Statutory declaration sheet for application for grant of Sexual Entertainment
Venue licence.
One of these forms must be completed by (i) the applicant;
(if) all directors of any company
applying for a licence; and
(iif) any other personwho will be
responsible for the management of
the licensed premises,
Q1 | Full Name: Andrew Lewfs Foster
Former Name (if any):
Fosition in relation to Applicant Regional Manager
{e.g. Director, Partner, Manager):
Date of Birth:
v
Gender: Male [x }‘/. Female [ ]
Permanent Residential Address:
If resident at this address for less
than 3 years, state previous
address: ]
Q2 | Have you been a resident in the Yes [x ] Nol[ ]
United Kingdom for more than If the answer is No give the date your residency
six months prior to the date of started:
the application?
Q3 (Have you ever been disqualified Yes[ ] No[x] ]
from holding a sex establishment | If the answer is Yes give full details:
licence (sex shop, sex cinema or
sexual entertainment venue) /
under Schedule 3, Paragraph 17
of the Local Government
(Miscellanecus Provisions) Act
19827 ]
4739154_1

Page 34

29



| (18/04/2013) Andy Foster - 4738154_1.DOCX docx

Q4 | Have you ever been involved in the management of a business, whether as
proprietor, director, company secretary, partner, manager, supervisor or otherwise
which has had any of the following types of licence refused, refused on renewal,
reviewed or revoked?

Sex establishment licence Yes|{ ] Nolx]
Licence for the sale of alcohol Yes|[ ] No [x ]
Licence for the provision of entertainment, Yes| ] No[x]
whether sexual or otherwise.

Personai licence under the Licensing Act Yes| ] No[x]
2003

If the answer is Yes to any of the above give

full detaiis:

Q5 | Have you ever been convicted of a criminal Yes|[ | Nof[x]
offence, whether in the United Kingdem or If the answer is Yes please give fuli
elsewhere? details below:

Details of previous convictions and/or cautions
Date of Conviction | Court of Conviction | Nature of Offence | Sentence

Q6 | To your knowledge are you currently the Yes| ] No{x]
subject of any criminal investigation?

If the answer is Yes please give full details:

47391541

Page

35

30



i' (18/04/2013) Andy Foster - 4739154_1.DOCX.docx

Page 3 I

Q7

Have you ever had any civil legal action Yes [ ] No[x]
taken against you?

If the answer is Yes please give full detalls;

QB

Have you ever been declared bankrupt or Yes|[ ] No{x]
entered into an arrangement with creditors or
an individual voluntary arrangement?

If the answer is Yes please give full details:

Q9

Have you ever been disqualified from acting as Yes [ ] No| x]
a company director?

If the answer is Yes please give full details;

Q10

Is there any other information which you believe the licensing authority would
reasonably expect notice of or you would like the licensing authority to take into
account when considering the information you have supplied?

Page 36

i



[ (18/04/2013) Andy Foster - 4738154_1.D0CX.docx

Gy

__Page 4]

Q11

Is there any information on this Annex which you do not wish to be seen by
members of the public? If so, state which information and the reasons why you do
not wish it to be seen.

Q12

| declare that | believe the information given above is true and complete in every
respect.

Name: .. Andrew Lewis FOStar. ...

Position in Organisation: ...... Regional Manager.....................ccoioiii i,
' L 2 A
Date: ..... 'i/?tf.ﬂ.“fﬂi sy [ i/L /7 el Feds
. G//'"’ _‘”__,-"/4 .
Sighature: .../ 4t

Where the applicant is a body corporate or unincorporated body this
application should be signed by a partner, the secretary or a director stating
in which capacity it is signed.

47391541

Page 37

32



NEX A\/

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL

§3)

Statutory declaration sheet for application for grant of Sexual Entertainment

Venue licence.,

One of these forms must be completed by (i} the applicant;

(i) all directors of any company
applying for a licence; and

(iiiy any other person who wili be
responsible for the management of
the licensed premises.

Q1

Full Name:

Peter Mercer

Former Name (if any):

Position in relation to Applicant General Manager

(e.g. Director, Partner, Manager):

Date of Birth:

Gender:

Male [x ]

Permanent Residential Address:

Female [ ]

If resident at this address for less
than 3 years, state previous

address:

Q2

Have you been a resident in the
United Kingdom for more than six

months prior to the date of the started:

application?

Yes [x ]
If the answer is No give tﬁe date your residency

No[ ]

Q3

Have you ever been disqualified
from holding a sex establishment
licence (sex shop, sex cinema or
sexual entertainment venue)
under Schedule 3, Paragraph 17
of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act

19827

Yes|[ ]
If the answer is Yes give full details:

No[x]

| Q4 | Have you ever been involved in the management of abusiness, whether as

4739159_1

Page 38

33



MG L

Have you ever been invoived in the management of a business, whether as

Q4
proprietor, director, company secretary, partner, manager, supervisor or otherwise
which has had any of the following types of licence refused, refused on renewal,
reviewed or revoked?

Sex establishment licence Yes [ ] No[x]
Licence for the sale of alcohol Yes | ] No [x ]
Licence for the provision of entertainment, Yes|[ ] No [ x]
whether sexual or otherwise.

Personal licence under the Licensing Act Yes| | No[x]
2003

If the answer is Yes to any of the above give

full details:

Q5 | Have you ever been convicted of a criminal Yes [ x] No[ ]
offence, whether in the United Kingdom or If the answer is Yes please give full
elsewhere? details below:

Details of previous convictions and/or cautions
Date of Conviction | Court of Conviction | Nature of Offence | Sentence
47391541

Page 39

3



WU LU D) FEIS IVITILCT - 47 0T 10Y_ L LAJLA JUCX

Q6 | To your knowledge are you currently the
subject of any criminal investigation?

Yes|[ ] N

o[x]

If the answer is Yes please give ful! details:

Q7

Have you ever had any civil legal action
taken against you?

Yes|[ ] No{x]

If the answer is Yes please give full details:

Q8

Have you ever been declared bankrupt or
entered into an arrangement with creditors or
an individual voluntary arrangement?

Yes[ ]

No [ x]

If the answer is Yes please give full details:

Q9

Have you ever been disqualified from acting as
a company director?

Yes | |

No[ x|

4739154-1

Page 40




a
TTOT TR Mg e smEaerwan R WM W e WS W G LA rayge

If the answer is Yes please give full details: '

Q10 | Is there any other information which you believe the licensing authority would
reasonably expect notice of or you would like the licensing autherity to take into
account when considering the information you have supplied?

Q11 | Is there any information on this Annex which you do not wish to be seen by

members of the public? If so, state which information and the reasons why you do
not wish it to be seen.

Q12 | | declare that | believe the information given above is true and complete in every
respect.

4739154-1

Page 41
36



UV AU 1D) MR IVIRICEI - 4709 [DY 1L DU X . docx

Pagé £

Name: ...Peter Mercer...................

Position in Organisation: ......General Manager — Spearmint Rhino Sheffield
Date: \%/OLH.Z_Q\g
Signature: ... tEE e e

Where the applicant is a body corporate or unincorporated body this
application should be signed by a partner, the secretary or a director stating
in which capacity it is signed.

47391541

Page 42

37



Page -

ANNEX A @

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL

Statutory declaration sheet for application for grant of Sexual Entertainment
Venue licence,

One of these forms must be completed by (i) the applicant:
(i) all directors of any company
applying for a licence: and
(iii) any other person who will be
responsible for the management of
the licensed premises.

Q1 Full Name: Michael David Goodwin
Former Name (if any):

Position in relation to Applicant Manager

(e.g. Director, Partner, Manager):
Date of Birth:

Gender: Male [x ] Female [ ]

Permanent Residential Address:

if resident at this address for less
than 3 years, state previous
address:

Have you been a resident in the Yes [x ] Nol ]

United Kingdom for more than If the answer is No give the date your residency
six months prior to the date of started:

the appiication?

Yes[] No[x]

| @3 | Have you ever been disqualified
If the answer is Yes give full details:

from holding a sex establishment
licence (sex shop, sex cinema or
sexual entertainment venue)
under Schedule 3, Paragraph 17
of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
19827

4739163_1

Page 43

38



Page 2

Cp Uit sewemana SR W OO LA OALUOUX
Q4 | Have you ever been invoived in the management of a business, \n_/hether as
proprietor, director, company secretary, partner, manager, supervisor or otherwise 4
which has had any of the following types of licence refused, refused on renewat,
reviewed or revoked?
Sex establishment licence Yes|[ ] No[x]j
Licence for the sale of alcohol Yes[ ] No [x ]
Licence for the provision of entertainment, Yes|[ ] No{x]
whether sexual or otherwise.
Personal licence under the Licensing Act Yes|[ ] No|[x]
2003
If the answer is Yes to any of the above give
full details:
_
Q5 | Have you ever been convicted of a criminal Yes [ x] No[ ]
offence, whether in the United Kingdom or If the answer is Yes please give full
elsewhere? details below:

Details of previous convictions andfor cautions
Date of Conviction | Court of Conviction Nature of Offence | Sentence

Q6 | To your knowledge are you currently the Yes | ] No[x]
subject of any criminal investigation?
If the answer is Yes please give full details:

47391631

Page 44

39



Page ;

— — 2 v hrnd L LINSASAL UL A

Have you ever had any civil legaf action Yes| | NoTx]

Eken against you? @
If the answer is Yes please give full details:

entered into an arrangement with creditors or
an individual voluntary arrangement?

If the answer is Yes please give full details:
Q9 | Have you ever been disqualified from acting as Yes|[ ] No [ x]

a company director?

If the answer is Yes please give full details:

Q10 | Is there any other information which you believe the licensing authority would
reasonably expect notice of or you would like the licensing authority to take into
account when considering the information you have supplied?

Q8 | Have you ever been declared bankrupt or [ Yes|[ ] No [ x] —[

MNo

N

Q11 | Is there any information on this Annex which you do not wish to be seen by
members of the public? If so, state which information and the reasons why you do
not wish it to be seen.

A739163- No

Page 45

4o



ety vvnSal U - 47 55103 1.D0CX dock

Page

Q12 | | declare that | believe the information given above is true and complete in every

respect.

Name: ...Michael David Goodwin.......................... .

Position in Organisation: ... ...Manage

Date: /8’027‘~9—0

Signature: ...... <z

Where the applicant is a body corporate or unincorporated body this
application should be signed by a partner, the secretary or a director stating
in which capacity it is signed.

47391631

Page 46




SPEARMINT RHINQ — SHEFFIELD
RULES FOR CUSTOMERS

I. Customers must be seated before a dancer can commence a dance and the customer
must remain seated during the dance with their hands al their sides.

2. There must be no touching of the dancers at any time during the dance except when
paying the dancer a fee.

3. No propositioning the dancers.
4. Customers must not dance at any time.

5. The customer must remain fully clothed at all times.

 Any breach of the above rules will result in the eustomer being excluded from the
club.

4659882 | Ipage A7
42



Page 48

43



SPEARMINT RHINO SHEFFIELD

POLICY FOR WELFARE OF

PERFORMERS

INTRODUCTION:

Dancers are not employed by Spearmint Rhino Ventures UK Limited or any of its group
companies including, but not limited to:-

spearmint Rhino Companies (Europe) Limited

Spearmint Rhino Companies (Birmingham) Limited

Sassy Productions Limited t/a Spearmint Rhino Bournemouth
REKW Limited t/a Spearmint Rhino Heathrow

Bacchus Leisure Limited t/a Spearmint Rhino Gentleman’s Club

Sonfield Developments Limited t/a Spearmint Rhino Sheffield

The relationship between the owner and the performer is as set out in the dancer performer
licence entered into between the owner and performer.

PURPOSE OF THIS POLICY:

This policy sets out the information which the dancer should expect and sets out general
procedures customarily followed by the owner in the regular operation of its business.

1. Each dancer will undergo a preliminary interview with the manager and will provide
two forms of identification including a utility bill and photographic identification.

2. During induction the House Rules and Code of Conduct together with a copy of any
conditions on the Premise Licence or Sexual Entertaiunent Venue Licence will be
explained and the dancer will be required to sign and confirm their understanding.

3. Appropriate health and safety training will be provided in relation to the layout of the
premises and the procedures in case of emergency.

4. Training will be provided in relation to working schedules, changing room etiquetle,
payments and charging, disciplinary procedure, customer relations and conflict
management, arrival and exit procedures, incident reporting, mystery shoppers and
their function.

4659855 1 Page 49

U



5. Experienced dancers will initially accompany new dancers and there will be on-going
evaluation and supervision by the club management (o ensure the dancer is compliant
with all house rules and code and conditions.

6. All areas of the premises to which the public have access will have adequale
supervision via CCTV and/or a SIA registered door supervisor.

7. A Secure dressing room facility will be provided for performers.

8. At the end of the performers schedule the performer will be escoried from the
premises 1o her vehicle, taxi or pre-arranged transporlation in the adjoining streels.

4659855 _1 Page 50

4s



THE FOLLOWING APPLIES AT ALL TIMES AND MUST

BE READ SUBJECT TO ANY VARIATIONS

AGREED WITH STATUTORY AUTHORITIES ATTACHED

A. General points and dancer attire:

1.

[0

Dancers must alwavs sign in with the Club Management prior to Lommencmg cach
shift;

At any time, dancers arriving or departing the Club mus| be fully dressed in clean, neat
and smart attire. Dancers must endeavour always to arrive at and depart trom the Clul

quietly, particularly during the evening and early moming;

Dancers are to arrive within adequate time to ensure that the dancer is reacly on the
main floor commensurate with the dancers shat or asdesignated by the Club
managenent;

Lacept inan emergenay, the use of mobile phonee i public arcas is prohibied:

Alter arriving at the Club and entenmg the diessing roum, dameers are b - hangs mio
appropriate atlire as required by the Clab and remam so dressed unless providing o
stage of table dance performance. On leaving the premises, dancers” attire should be as

indicated at {2) above;
Dancers” appropriate atlire shall include:

at Floor length elegant gowns and high heel shoes as approved by the Clals
management. The Club reserves e vight to speciny whot i< and s ol

apprapriate v o continual basis:

bi Shoes must retam a minimum or a3 Deel ansd e worn gt aff nres while in
any public area of the Cluby;
el Dancers” hair and make-up must be presented professionally. The Club

encourages the use of costume jewellery, hairpieces, gloves and refated

accessories - remember style and elegance is the desired intent;

dr - Dancers shall e required to wear at least 1 gestring or t-back undergarment in
addition to the afore mentioned appropriate attiee and not be completety nude
eNeept while ;.';e'=rlnrming o e contre mam stope of the Cluly o perornung

o« nuede table dance where peemitted:

er AL albtimes, other than daring a table dance o saoe pertornianee, dan e

must remain clothed whilst in the public areas and;

fi Dancers must fully dress at the end ol vach periormance.

Page 51

Ub



B. Dancer conduct:

1.

=z

t

[ancers may never give out any persenal information. including telephone numbuee, or
contact details away from the Club. Dancers may provicke a customer with the dave aned
shiits thes or other dancers wark a1 the Cluh:
Danc e imay rener g epitany telephone nosiber, wicdiess o any other contac
HOEGLATIOY T Al Ctmd R e epl o the Jonm o breoe s ard, bt may oo
PERC e ol HAl Bora e Bl § e oo e Behse Je ng fhe prems
cline e mgar peemaricerthy aerder b et b s of o RN
AN |!?1r=i_iL-. u;)\,‘in;; JdIy et
Pancers are pever o be in the compan ot a v usiones caopl man anc. ey b e
public within the Club texcluding toilets:;
Dancers are never 1o enter or e mn a rt‘:[';f:hdf(,sfi' VR danee aren, onfe g loar SUPETVisor
OF MANAger mav open stch a roped-olf area;
Blancers are never o peder a nude tabile daoce unkess dander s o supenised g or
sifR Homielies al g Boor spevisor,
PRancers mst eveer pertonsy oonodhe table donee ew cpd e VL e e gy
Dhuring e pettornsie e ol a table dane e
b Custamers st he scated i an uprght position agamst the baok of the
bowoth with their haneds by their sides hoiore & i er can commence o lable
dance, customers must remain <o seated during the entire dance

b For the purpose of conastraint. <laneors iy oy oo ustoner ahove the

customer’s choest with only thee dhaneers hands:
! L incers most not s<iban or strackdle the costomeers

o Dancess miost maintan one shoed oo oy i thoa s At ol e~ and ne [)'.h .-

itherw feed on the booth sear;
¢ Bancers mav not place thedr keee o kneos an thes bodin e

ik Floor wark s prohibited and mav anby b pesoned whilst pedoming stage
shows on the Club's designated stages;

ol Dancers may not perform any act al clearly amulates mastirbation. oral
sen of sesual intercourse, including the inserion of any shject, including
awn Tinger il any genital opering. Dancers mav nol ouch their Breass

with their mouths, s or longues,;

in Dancess mav oot intentionalb tom iy o coslonier al any e during i
perlommance except as stated oo b abwwe, or Giliess abzvdutels Geedendad b
a Fhird party or objed:

1 Dancers may not use language of an inappooprie. suggestive or seaaally
graphic nature al anv time;

Customers are not permitted to dance at e time, Cuislomers st renuin

appropriately clothed al alf times, Netber costomer nor dasces may ronws e e

o e costomers dothing chunng @ pedonange:

B customer attempls tolouch, o speak 1o a dances inappropriately, e dancer miel

immediately stop the petormance and oxplair the rolovant rulo, 1 e iy, ek 1o

desistai e from andd cooperate with a oo spercison s wll 1k BTSRRI

action. swhich mav i tucie ese »rpxé‘.@wel 15l2I':|'i aubos U Lol



Vi

ER

Platovis e seves fosntentionallv touch e verstials of Dreasis of anedber dons o o
ackiosngly porsd another davcer focmbennionafhe G b e gongake o Tieoiers

Iarcerss are mever 10 Ngage N aln ac b ol prasftudion il vy g of craliihes or

pavments o any form of sexual tavour or offer as such®

Phancers nay il arcepl 4 customer’s Diller of jry e n in reium for westa fas ours

(solicitation):

[har e st ol engeee incaonunenications that cogkd Do deemed s ot ol

proshinfien or soBobanens cvenon Hie dhasesr D pse e Gl oanemn ol e ais
Plang o= e oo o W enlenedy e e sy aryer it e ol thie g ks
FLicers are reves TOaeioe o et @ cnsiomen onlscheod the Claly
Y
Dincers must never engage in any unlawtul activite siler the Clabs,

Dancers may mever feave the premises daring g shifi escope in the case o an
cmergency aned thert onf vedy The capress pomssionof the duty manages el
el udaneers maust sipn ond before Jeaving the premises e daier leaves cary,

. 1 i e B YTITR 1. 1 PR -
ror s reanery thie dancer sl ocd beorechvnined daime that i

. v , .
Paaseers sl b fovec b e onsd o ooabatt oy g oessggded L o g rmienibes

of ety sl emeort themy oo e s v ol e prensees

Al the end of The night =hitt, dancers mast nol leasve the premises wmi anter e

customers have departed and then have boen dlearer o teave Dy the mmnagoers:
xane ors mav onke consume deoshol innodersiion,;

Dancers must sever Comsume, Ppossess o beounder thentiuence of any anlawtul drag o

st mbane 0 unbeeot s pesonally prossnbed auedic atior by oregstered U

Fhlucers e fever T ovabe s kpesvihe peernt e ers oot Bea et e

A b vt b ch s e sorigen alfv e obed Lot the d b

Togpless bl danees andb il nude tabie dancis may b porionmed ey

arc-telermined rate anoset by the individaal Clats
Paticers are requiredd Trom tine fo Hime to paticipate s gromationed e livities and
offers s desigiated by e Club omanages:

Pranevrs ane rogacoch romms Gone To Uie Lo prerbio ioabe nestaze and pothiom

Dotlermres s deszaied By Cled s

WWhilst pertarsing on stage o podnin, e e eyl pedior oy g Hint s learh
siinolaiess masturbation, eral sexv o sesual mbescouee, i lugline e mscrtion of aim
object, including their cwn finger ink any genital openisy. Dancers may nat toach

Hheir breasts with their mouths, lips or lungue:

For the parposes of sately and stancards, the Cluby maye myplone the use ol cl NOLE:

circuit camerds and racio communications hroughout the premises andd:

A ddaneer e o B violation of any of these toks willor oxcoption,

AN i

Page 53

weild B wubect fonthe ciis



Ordnance Survey map reference SK3586NE

et Scale 1:1250
Administrative area South Yorkshire ; Sheffield

Laﬁd Regiglfg Title number SYK450303

Lirence Mumber 100026316,
3.
4o~

aductian inwhole or i part is probibited vathout the prior written pernnssion ol Qrdnante Survey.
: £ ~ - - . - .
\< ~ £or ‘\\\

"

-Crown Copyright.
e
’ ~

-~

Produced by Land Rearsiry. Rapr
[ <. ~_

Page 54 @9



Shettiel

City Council

THE LICENSING ACT 2003

Premises Licence No: SY 0871 PR ISSUE NO: 3

The Sheffield City Council being the Licensing Authority under the above Act,
hereby grant this licence in aceordance with the requirerments of the Licensing Act
2003 in respect of and subjeet fo the conditions atfached:

PART 1 - Premises detzils

Spearrnint Rhino
60 Brown Straet
SHEFFIELD 81 2BS

Telephone Number: 0114 2798002
Where the licence is time fimited, the dafes:

Not appiicable.

Licensable activities authorised by the licence and the times the licence authorises
the cariying out of licensable activities:

1. Provision of regulated entertainment: Indoor
(a) plays
(b) films
(c) live music
(d) recorded music
(e) performances of dance
(f) anything of a similar description to that falling within {c), (d) or (e}

Sunday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Monday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Tuesday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Wednesday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Thursday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Friday 10:006 to 06:00 hours the following day
Saturday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the foliowing day

On 31% December the hours will be 10:00 to the beginning of permitted hours on 1%
January the year following.

To add such hours during which the licensable activities may be provided during a live
broadcast of any ‘Olympic Sport, or crickef, where a team representing a Commonwealth
Country is taking part together with Formula 1 Grand Prix and the American National
Football League Finals. A minimum of 10 days notice is to be given to the Police and
Licensing Authority, with the police having the power to veto the occasion.

& INVESTORS
% & IN PEOPLE

e

Page 55 e



Page 56



2. Provision of entertainment facilities for: Indoor
(9) making music
(h) dancing
(1) entertainment of a similar description falling within (g) or (h)

Sunday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Monday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Tuesday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Wednesday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Thursday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Friday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Saturday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day

On 31% December the hours will be 10:00 to the beginning of permitted hours on 1%
January the year following.

To add such hours during which the licensable activities may be provided during a live
broadcast of any ‘Olympic Sport’, or cricket, where a team representing a Commonweaith
Country is taking part together with Formula 1 Grand Prix and the American National
Foothall League Finals. A minimum of 10 days notice is to be given to the Poiice and
Licensing Authority, with the police having the power to veto the occasion.

3. Provision of late night refreshment: Indoor

Sunday 23:00 to 05:00 hours the following day
Monday 23:00 to 05:00 hours the following day
Tuesday 23:00 to 05:00 hours the following day
Wednesday 23:00 to 05:00 hours the following day
Thursday 23:00 to 05:00 hours the following day
Friday 23:00 to 05:00 hours the following day
Saturday 23:00 to 05:00 hours the following day

To add such hours during which the licensable activities may be provided during a live
broadcast of any ‘Olympic Sport', or cricket, where a team representing a Commonwealth
Country is taking part together with Formula 1 Grand Prix and the American National
Football League Finals. A minimum of 10 days notice is to be given to the Police and
Licensing Authority, with the police having the power to veto the occasion.

4. Saie by retail of alcohol:
(a) for consumption on the premises
(b} for consumption off the premises

Sunday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Monday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Tuesday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Wednesday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Thursday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Friday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Saturday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day

On 31" December the hours will be 10:00 fo the beginning of permitted hours on 1
January the year following.

Page 57



To add such hours during which the licensable activities may be provided during a live
broadcast of any ‘Olympic Sport', or cricket, where a team representing a Commonwealth
Country is taking part together with Formula 1 Grand Prix and the American National
Football League Finals. A minimum of 10 days notice is to be given to the Police and
Licensing Authority, with the police having the power to veto the occasion.

The opening hours of the premises:

Sunday 00:00 to 24:00 hours
Monday 00:00 to 2400 hours
Tuesday 00:00 to 24:00 hours
Wednesday 00:00 to 24:00 hours
Thursday 00:00 to 24:00 hours
Friday 00:00 to 24:00 hours
Saturday 00:00 to 24:00 hours

PLEASE NOTE:

In the event, that the hours permitted on this premises licence differ from those authorised
on your planning consent, you MUST ONLY operate to which ever is the most restrictive
permission.

Both Licensing and Planning carry out enforcement activities and if you are found to be in
breach of either your premises licence and / or your planning consent, it may result in legal
action being taken against you.

Where the licence authorises supplies of aicohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies

Sale by retail of alcohol for consumption both on and off the premises.

PART 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of holder
‘of premises licence:

Sonfield Developments Limited
C/-LT Law

18 Soho Square

London W1D 3QL

Telephone Number: 020 7025 8332

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable);

4315210

Page 58
@ 52



Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol:

Peter Mercer

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply
of alcohol:

Personal Licence Number: WK/050603
Issuing Authority: Harrogate Borough Council

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited:
Restricted.

This Premises Licence shall be in force from the Second Appointed Day.

Issued on: 16™ January, 2006

Acting Head of Licensing
On behalf of Sheffield City Council (issuing licensing authority)

Sheffield City Council — For Office use only

Variation of Premises Licence 1 Granted 3" March 2011

Variation of DPS

Transfer of Premises Licence

Minor Variation

Page 59



Annex 1A — Mandatory Conditions

Mandatory Condition 1 (Section 19 ss 2)

Where a licence authorises the sale of alcohol then no supply of alcohol may be
made under the premises licence —

{(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of
the premises ficence, or

(b)  ata time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended.

Mandatory Condition 2 (Section 19 ss 3)

Where a licence authorises the sale of alcohol then every supply of alcohol under
the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal
licence. -

Mandatory Condition 3 (Section 20)

1. Where a premises licence authorises the exhibition of films, the licence includes
the following conditions relating to the admission of children to the exhibition:

(a) The admission of children (under 18) to the exhibition of any film must be
restricted in accordance with the classification set by the film classification
body (currently the BBFC).

(b)In a case where there is no classification given by the classification body (the
BBFC) the admission of chiidren to the exhibition of any film must be
restricted in accordance with any recommendation given by the Licensing
Authority.

2. In this section -

“children” means persons aged under 18; and

“film classification body” means the person or persons designated as the authority
under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c.39) {authority to determine
suitability of video works for classification).

Mandatory Condition 4 (Section 21)

Where a premises licence inciudes a condition that at specified times one or more

individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity each such
individual must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority.

Page 60

& s



Annex 1B - Mandatory Conditions effective from 6™ April 2010:

These mandatory conditions apply where the licence authorises the supply of
alcohol. The conditions in paragraph 1 to 3 do not apply where the licence
authorises the sale by retail or supply of alcohol only for consumption off the
premises.

1. (1) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on
relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible
promotions in relation to the premises.

(2} In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the
following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the
purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the
premises in a manner which carries a significant risk of leading or
contributing to crime and disorder, prejudice to public safety, public
nuisance, or harm to children—

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed
to require or encourage, individuals to—

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time fimit (other than to drink
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply
aicohol), or

(i1} drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or

otherwise);

(b} provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a
fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular
characteristic (other than any promotion or discount available to an
individual in respect of alcohol for consumption at a table meal, as
defined in section 159 of the Act);

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to
encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a
period of 24 hours or less;

(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the
premises of a sporting event, where that provision is dependent on—
(i) the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or
(ii)the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring;

{e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posteis or
flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be
considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or
to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner.

2. The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one
person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person is unable to
drink without assistance by reason of a disability).

3. The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on regquest to
customers where it is reasonably available.

Page 61
o 55



Annex 1C - Mandatory Conditions effective from 1st October 2010:

These mandatory conditions apply where the licence authorises the supply of
alcohol. The condition 5 does not apply where the licence authorises the sale by
retail or supply of alcohol only for consumption off the premises.

4. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure
that an age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale
or supply of alcohol.

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to
be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy)
to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing
their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

5. The responsible person shall ensure that—

(a) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied
having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely
closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures-

(i) beer or cider: % pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 mi; and

(b) Customers are made aware of the availability of these measures.

Page 62

Sty



Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

1. CCTV installed and maintained according to current standards.
2. Door Supervisors should be SIA registered.

3. A customer code shall be prominently displayed and clearly visible throughout the
premises advising patrons of the rules in relation to strip tease.

4. A price list should be displayed in a prominent and clearly visible throughout the
premises advising patrons of the rules in relation to stiiptease.

5. Water and non-alcoholic beverages are available.
6. Notices to leave the premises quietly will be displayed at the premises.

7. Except as with the consent of the council, no external advertising of the striptease /
lap dancing shall take place at the premises or in its immediate vicinity (within 440
yards of the premises).

8. No dancer may perform at the premises until such time as photographic proof of
identity showing date of birth is provided, confirming that the dancer is over the 18
years.

9. Whilst strip tease is taking place, no person under the age of 18 shall be permitted
on the premises. A natice shall be clearly displayed at the entrance to the premises

stating that “no person under 18 will be admitted” so it can be easily read by
persons entering the premises.

Any embedded permissions and restrictions attached to the justices on/off
licence including those specified at Appendix 1.

1. Any personal licence holders at the premises to be a member of the Pub Watch
Scheme.

2. Golour CCTV wili be installed in positions agreed with the Police and tapes or other
forms of record stored for such period of time as the Police may specify.

Specific conditions converted from the Public Entertainment Licence

1. Capacity

1) The number of members of the public who may be present at any one time on the
premises or in any part of such premises specified below shall not exceed: -

Area Capacity
The whole of the premises 450

(2) Where the Council is of the opinion that in order to avoid or reduce any disturbance
of or annoyance to residents in the neighbourhood of the premises or the
occurrence of disorderly conduct in the premises, it is desirable for the permitted

Page 63

@t 57



hours specified in Part 1 of the Premises Licence to be varied, the Council may,
after affording the licensee the opportunity of making representations to the Council,
by notice served on the licensee vary the permitted hours and thereafter the hours
specified in the notice shall apply in substitution for the hours specified in Part 1 of
the Premises Licence.

2A. Security Staff

The licensee shali maintain at the premises a register containing the following details of
all persons present on the premises during Public Entertainments whose duties wholly
or mainly consist of the direction or contro! of the members of the public. The details of
each person shall be entered prior to that person commencing such duties and shall
not be deleted from the register for a period of twelve months from the last date upon
which that person carried out such duties. The details of each person required to be
kept are: full name and address, date of birth, photograph, physical description and
description of duties at the premises.

The licensee shall also keep a record showing which registered person{s) are working
at the premises on each occasion the premises are open for the purpose of Public
Entertainment. This record is to be kept at the premises for a period of not less than
twelve months.

The register and record shall be epen for inspection at any time by any Police Officer or
Authorised Officer of the Council.

2B. Security Staff Registration Scheme

The Licensee shall only permit staff registered by he Council (under its Security Staff
Registration Scheme) or licensed by the Security Industry Authority to be engaged in
duties which wholly or mainly consist of: (a) deciding on the suitability of persons to be
aliowed on the premises and/or (b) maintaining order on the premises.

1. The Licensee must take a proactive approach to noise control to ensure that noise
is kept to a reasonable level so as not to cause a nuisance at the nearest noise

sensitive building.
2. The power ampiifier must have an electronic noise limited device fitted and set to a

maximum of 94 dB at the nearest bar.

Striptease / Pole / Lap Dancing Conditions:

1. The striptease/entertainment (lap dancing) shall be given only by the performers
/entertainers and the audience must remain fully clothed.

2. The performance must not be visible from the street.

3. Except with the consent of the council no external advertising of the striptease/
lapdancing shall take place at the premises or in its immediate vicinity (within 440
yards of the premises).

4. When the premises are open for striptease/lap dancing no person under the age of
18 shall be allowed on the premises.

Page 64

&5%



5. Customers must be informed prior to lap dancing commencing of the following
rufes:-
a. No touching must take place during dances.
b. Customers must remain seated during dancing.
c. Customers must leave the area as soon as the dances allofted to that customer
have finished.

6. Lap dancers must not:-
a. Sit on customers’ laps during performances.

7. On completion of the dance or dances, dancers must:-
a. Ask the customer to leave the area immediately.
b. Dress themselves immediately.
c. Dancers must not leave the dance area in a state of undress and must dress in
accordance with club regulations.

8. Podium (Pole) dancers must not::-
a. Entice customers onto the podium.
b. Remove their lower undergarments. (Dancers may dance topless)
a. Interfere with their undergarments in such a way as to show their genitals.
b. Receive gratuities other than in their garter belts or by hand.

9. Sex toys must not be used and penetration of the genital area by any means must
not take place.

10.Dancers must not solicit, exchange addresses or telephone numbers with
customers or liase with customers off the premises.

11.When dancers leave the premises they must be escorted to their cars or taxi by a
another staff member.

12. The following minimum number of registered security staff will be located at the
front entrance:-

One person Sunday to Thursday;
Two persons Friday and Saturday.

In addition there will be one registered security staff located within the premises for
the first 50 customers and then one registered security staff per additional 100
customers thereafter whenever the premises are open.

Notwithstanding the above, no floor at the premises will be open to the public unless
there is a minimum of one registered security staff on that floor.

13.These conditions are imposed in addition to the standard Public Entertainment
Licence Conditions with which the Licencee must comply.

Page 65

db VY4



Annex 3 — Conditions aftached after a hearing by the licensing authority

Page 66

X/



Annex 4 — Plans

Plan Reference: G/100/40
Date: JULY 2005

Page 67
oA Gi



Page 68

Appendix 1

b2



Sheffield

City Coundil

LICENSING ACT 2003

Premises Licence Summary ISSUE NO: 3 g »5#

The Sheffield City Council being the Licensing Authority under the above Act hereby
issue this Premises Licence Summary in respect of:

Premises licence number SY 0971 PR

Spearmint Rhino
60 Brown Street
SHEFFIELD 81 28BS

Telephone Number: 0114 2798092

Where the licence is time limited, the dates:
Not applicable.

Licensable activities authorised by the ficence and the times the licence
authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

1. Provision of regulated entertainment: indoor
(a) plays
(b) films
(c) live music
(d) recorded music
(e) performances of dance
() anything of a similar description to that falling within {c), (d) or (&)

Sunday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Monday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Tuesday 10:00 to 06:00 heurs the following day
Wednesday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the foltowing day
Thursday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Friday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Saturday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day

On 31% December the hours will be 10:00 to the beginning of permitted hours on 1%
January the year following.

To add such hours during which the licensable activities may be provided during a live
broadcast of any ‘Olympic Sport, or cricket, where a team representing a
Commonwealth Country is taking part together with Formula 1 Grand Prix and the
American National Football League Finals. A minimum of 10 days notice is to be given
to the Police and Licensing Authority, with the police having the power to veto the
occasion.

)

& Y INVESTORS
%_o IN PEOPLE

Page 69
me 63



2. Provision of entertainment facilities for: indoor
() making music
(h) dancing
(I} entertainment of a simitar description falling within (g) or (h)

Sunday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Monday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Tuesday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Wednesday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Thursday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Friday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Saturday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day

On 31* December the hours will be 10:00 to the beginning of permitted hours on 1%
January the year foilowing.

To add such hours during which the licensable activities may be provided during a live
broadcast of any ‘Olympic Sport’, or cricket, where a team representing a
Commonwealth Country is taking part together with Formula 1 Grand Prix and the
American National Football League Finals. A minimum of 10 days notice is to be given
to the Police and Licensing Authority, with the police having the power to veto the
occasion.

3. Provision of late night refreshment: indoor

Sunday 23:00 to 05:00 hours the following day
Monday 23:00 to 05:00 hours the following day
Tuesday 23:00 to 05:00 hours the following day
Wednesday 23:00 to 05:00 hours the following day
Thursday 23:00 to 05:00 hours the following day
Friday 23:00 to 05:00 hours the following day
Saturday 23:00 to 05:00 hours the follawing day

To add such hours during which the licensable activities may be provided during a live
broadcast of any ‘Olympic Sport’, or cricket, where a team representing a
Commonwealth Country is taking part together with Formula 1 Grand Prix and the
American National Football LLeague Finals. A minimum of 10 days notice is to be given
to the Police and Licensing Authority, with the police having the power to veto the
occasion.

4. Sale by retail of alcohol:
(a) for consumption on the premises
(b) for consumption off the premises

Sunday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Monday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Tuesday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Wednesday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Thursday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Friday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Saturday 10:00 to 06:00 hours the following day
Page 70

oY



On 31 December the hours will be 10:00 to the beginning of permitted hours on 1%
January the year following.

To add such hours during which the licensable activities may be provided during a live
broadcast of any ‘Olympic Sport, or cricket, where a team representing a
Commonwealth Country is taking part together with Formula 1 Grand Prix and the
American National Football League Finals. A minimum of 10 days notice is to be given
to the Police and Licensing Authority, with the police having the power to veto the
ocecasion.

The opening hours of the premises:

Sunday 00:00 to 24:00 hours
Monday 00:00 to 24:00 hours
Tuesday 00:00 to 24:00 hours
Wednesday 00:00 to 2400 hours
Thursday 00:00 to 24:00 hours
Friday 00:00 to 24:00 hours
Saturday 00:00 to 24:00 hours

PLEASE NOTE:

In the event, that the hours permitted on this premises licence differ from those
authorised on your planning consent, you MUST ONLY operate to which ever is the
most restrictive permission.

Both Licensing and Planning carry out enforcement activities and if you are found to
be in breach of either your premises licence and / or your planning consent, it may
result in legal action being taken against you.

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or
off supplies
Sale by retail of alcohol for consumption both on and off the premises.

PART 2
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail {where relevant} of
holder of premises licence:

Sonfield Developments Limited
C/-LT Law

18 Soho Square

London W1D 3QL

Telephone Number: 020 7025 8332

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number
(where applicable):

4315210

Page 71
. YAY



Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises
the supply of alcohol:

Peter Mercer
State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited:

Restricted.

The Premises Licence shall be in force from the Second Appointed Day.

Issued on: 16" January, 2006

Acting Head of Licensing
On behalf of Sheffield City Councii (issuing licensing authority)

Page 72
gy Lo



Sheffield

Local Government (Miscelianeous Provisions) Act 1982 Schedule 3 City Council
Licence To Use Premises As A Sex Establishment : 2 o

Category: SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE

ISSUE NO:1

Licence No: SEV 002

Sheffield City Council being the appropriate Authority under Schedule 3 of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 hereby grant a sexual entertainment venue
licence in accordance with the requirements of the Act and subject to the conditions attached

to the following:
Name and (registered) address of holder of the licence:

Sonfield Developments Limited
161 Tottenham Court Road
London

WAT 7NN

To use the following premises as a Sexual Entertainment Venue situated at and known as:
Premises details:

Spearmint Rhino
60 Brown Street
Sheffield
S1 2BS

Telephone number: 0114 2798092

Nature of entertainment:
Lap Dancing / Pole Dancing / Strip Tease / Other of a like kind

This licence is granted subject to any terms, conditions and restrictions contained in
regulations made by the Council applicable to Sexual Entertainment Venues, insofar as they,
or any of them, are not expressly excluded by any provision in the Schedule below, but subject
to any variations to such regulations set out in the said Schedule.

The times at which the premises will be used as a Sexual Entertainment Venue:

Supday 24:00 to 00:00 hours
Monday 24:00 to 00:00 hours
Tuesday 24:00 to 00:00 hours
Wedneasday 24:00 to 00:00 hours
Thursday 24:00 to 00:00 hours
Friday 24:00 to 00:00 hours
Saturday 24:00 to 00:00 hours
LS
4% INVESTORS
v oY
Page 73 %y & IN PEOPLE



Seasonal variations / non standard timings:
None
Designated areas permitted for performance of sexual entertainment;

Performances of 'sexual entertainment may only be permitted in areas of the premises as
outlined on the plans attached to this licence at Appendix 1.

This licence shall be in force from: 1 May 2012
until: 30 April 2013
issued: 26 April 2012

A copy of this licence and the conditions applicable to this sexual entertainment venue licence
shall be displayed inside the licensed premises where they can conveniently be read by any
member of the public who has entered the premises.

Stephen Lonnia

Chief Licensing Officer

Head of Licensing

On behalf of Sheffield City Council being the appropriate Authority

Sheffield City Council — For Office use only

Transfer of an SEV licence 0
. Variation of a SEV licence 0

Page 74

by



Annex 1 - Conditions

Page 75 $4



Annex 2 — Conditions aitached after a hearing by the Lice nsing Authority

KEY DEFINITIONS

The following terms are used frequently throughout the conditions:

@

“The Council/Licensing Authority” refers to Sheffield City Council

e The “2009 Act” refers to the Policing and Crime Act 2009

e The “1982 Act” refers to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982

» The “2003 Act” refers to the Licensing Act 2003

» “Section 277 refers to section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009

o “Schedule 3” refers to schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1982 as amended

¢ “The Licensing Committee” refers to the committee of Sheffield City Councit.

e “Relevant Entertainment” refers to: live performance and live displays of nudity, provided
solely or principally for the purposes of sexually stimulating any member of the audience

> “Nude” means in the case of a woman exposing her nipples, pubic area, genitals or anus

and in the case of a man, exposure of his pubic area, genitals or anus.

General Conditions

1. Rules shall be produced by the licensee for customers indicating conduct that is permitted.
These rules shall be prominently displayed in any bar area, and at sufficient other locations
within the venue to ensure that they are brought to the attenton of customers.

2. No relevant entertainment provided shall be visible from the street or from any other external
area to which the public have access.

3. Performers shall not whilst Nude, whether engaged in relevant entertainment or not, be
visible from the street or from any other external area to which the public have access.

4. The licence holder shall ensure that no staff or other persons engaged on their behalf
remain in any area of the premises which can be viewed from outside the premises, or from
any other area outside the premises, for the purpose of encouraging potential customers into
the premises.

9. Without the prior written consent of the Council there shall not be displayed outside the
premises, in the immediate vicinity, or elsewhere within the city any advertisements,
photographs or images that indicate or suggest that relevant entertainment takes place on
the premises.

6. There shall be prominently and legibly displayed a comprehensive tariff of all charges and
prices in respect of relevant entertainment, including any charge for the company of any
person working at the premises, which shall be iluminated and placed in such a position that it
can at all times be easily and conveniently be read by persons inside the premises. :

7. No charge shall be made to the customer for any food or drink provided for any person
working at the premises unless that customer has specifically ordered it having first been made

aware of the cost.

Page 76 -



The Premises

1. CCTV will be provided and in working order in the premises, the positioning of such
cameras will be in liaison with the Police Licensing Officer and Crime Prevention Department
and shall comply with the minimum specification of the South Yorkshire Police at the date of
license issue.

2. CCTV recorded material should be kept secure for a period of 31 days and disclosed to any
Police Officer or authorised officer of the Council.

3. No CCTV footage is to be copied, for the purpose of being given away or sold (except as
required by Polfice / Council for investigation / enforcement purposes). CCTV footage may be
distributed internally by licence hoiders (including to other group premises) for the purposes of
internal management and training.

4. Except in accordance with the requirements for CCTV as described above, no photographs,
films or video recordings shall be taken of the performances. Nor shall electronic
transmissions of a performance be shown outside of the premises (except for the purpose

of remote management of the premises and in those circumstances, the licensee shall ensure
that onily those involved in management shall view any photograph, film or recording).

5. Notices shall be displayed informing customers of the presence of CCTV.

6. An appropriate room shall be available as a change and rest area for performers. Access to
this room shall be restricted to performers and employees only whilst the performers are on the
premises. This room shall be marked on the plans.

7. The licence holder or his nominated deputy (who is authorised in writing), or door-
supervisors shall carry out regular monitoring of all areas of the premises to which the public
have access and shall intervene promptly, if necessary, to ensure compliance with licence

conditions.
Management Standards

1. Training shall be provided to all members of management and staff regarding the conditions
of the licence, management practices and any relevant legislation to ensure compliance with
the same. A written record of all such training shall be maintained at the premises and made
available on request to the Police and authorised officers of the Council.

2. The licensee shall not employ any person under 18 years of age in the business of the
establishment.

3. No person may provide relevant entertainment at the premises until such time as
photographic proof of identity showing date of birth is provided to the licence holder, confirming
that the person is over the age of 18 years.

4. A record of any perscn employed or engaged at the premises, including name, address,
National Insurance number, photograph and date of birth will be retained in a register at the
premises. Such details are to be checked and verified by the licence holder against other
forms of identity. These records are then to be retained at the premises for at least 12 months
from the last day (date) of their employment and made availabie to both Police Officers and

authorised officers of the Council on request.

Page 77 W



5. A 'Signing-in’ register shall be kept at the premises that records the date, start time and
finish or cash out time of ali person(s) involved in the relevant entertainment at the premises.
This shall be retained for a period of 12 months and made available for immediate inspection
by a Police Officer or authorised officers of the Council.

6. When the premises are open for relevant entertainment o person under the age of 18 shall
be permitted to be on the premises. The licensee shall operate a Chailenge 21 Policy and
persons appearing to be under the age of 21 shall be required fo show proof of ID. A notice to
this effect shall be displayed in a prominent place at the entrance to the premises and any
other appropriate location (i.e. at the bar),

7. The licence holder must maintain an incident log of any person(s) refused entry at the
premises and record the reason why such persons were refused entry. The log shall be
retained for a period of 12 months and the licence holder shall make the log available to any
Police Officer or authorised officer of the Council on request.

8. A written code of conduct for those engaged in the relevant entertainment shall be produced
by the licence holder together with a disciplinary procedure for any breaches of the code. The
code of conduct shall prohibit activities that might be thought to lead to prostitution, breaches
of the licence or any other unlawful activities. The Code shall be made available to the Police
or authorised officers of the Council on request,

The Protection of those Engaged in Relevant Entertainment / Prevention of Crime and
Disorder

1. Any person who is providing relevant entertainment, must be briefed verbally, or in writing,
by the licence holder or his nominated deputy (authorised in writing) as to the conditions that
pertain to their particular premises and as to the code of conduct, including the fact that their
activities will be recorded on CCTV. The performer(s) shall sign in & register that they have
been briefed, any such register shall be retained for 12 months and made available for
inspection by any Police Officer or authorised officer of the Council.

2. {(a) During any performance of relevant entertainment there must be no physical contact
between the performer and any member of the viewing pubilic, except for the placing of money
/ tokens in an item of clothing worn by a performer or into the performer's hand before or at

the end of the performance and a customary kiss on the cheek of the patron by the performer
at the conclusion of the performance. A brief handshake before or at the end of a performance

is permitted.

(b) Notwithstanding paragraph (a) above, a performance which does not invoive striptease or
nudity may involve a patron seated on a chair on the stage whilst dancers perform on the
stage around the patron and may include touching the patron's head and shoulders soley with
the performer's head and shoulder soley with the performers hands.

3. There shali be no penetration of a performer's genitals or anus by any means.
4. Performers shall not engage in masturbation and or/oral sex.

5. Except with the consent of the performer and at their invitation no customer shall participate
in any relevant entertainment. Any customer participating must remain seated during
the performance.

Page 78 " 72



6. No customer shall be required or encouraged to participate in any relevant entertainment
against their will.

7. No customer shall have any clothing removed during any relevant entertainment.

8. At the completion of the relevant entertainment the performers shall dress themselves
immediately.

9. Whilst on the premises performers are not to solicit, exchange addresses or telephone
numbers with customers, or arrange to liaise with customers off the premises.

Safety and Security

1. The licensee shall maintain good order in the premises at all times and shall ensure that
persons entering or leaving the licensed premises conduct themselves in an orderly manner
and do not in any way cause annoyance to residents and persons passing by.

2. Relevant entertainment may only take place in 'designated areas' that are marked on the
plan of the premises submitted to the Licensing Service as part of their application.

3. The licensee shall have in place and comply with a policy concerning the safety of
performers arriving at and leaving the premises. The policy shall be recorded in writing and
made available to the Police or authorised officers of the Council on request

4. The licensee or a nominated manager (in writing) shall be present on the premises at all
times whilst the relevant entertainment is taking place.

Page 79

73



Page 80

APPENDIX B



23 May 2013

Licensing Service,

Sheffield City Council, -
Block C, Staniforth Road Depot,
Staniforth Road, Sheffield, .' ' j
59 3HD S i

Dear Sirs

Re: Spearmint Rhino, 60 Brown Street, Sheffield, S$1 2BS - Application under Part Il
and Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 -
Sexual Entertainment Venue License

We, wish to object to the above application for the reasons
outlined below. Section 7 of Sheffield City Council's Sexual Entertainment Venue Licensing
Policy states that The Council may refuse the grant or renewal of the licence if it would be
inappropriate, having regard to the character of the relevant locality; and that the Council
acknowledges that licensed premises (sexual entertainment venues) "can result in a
potential fear of crime, anti social behaviour, noise pollution and other disturbance to

residents"

The route past Spearmint Rhino is a very high traffic area for students with an abundance of
student accommodation nearby and a new development for student accommodation situated
immediately adjacent: the route for students to Sheffield Hallam takes them directly past the
venue during normai working hours and around the clock, due to Sheffield Hallam
University's Learning Centre opening hours 24/7 and teaching hours up to 9pm. There is
also concern that our students are entitled to and need to fesl safe and secure during their
studies at Sheffield Hallam and that a venue such as Spearmint Rhino will undermine the
perception of safety that the City and the University has spent considerable resources to

ensure.

Spearmint Rhino falls within the Cultural Industries Quarter Conservation Area, which
was formally designated on 5 February 2001. The current existence of the venue portrays
the area in an anti social light not conducive with its setting in the Cultural Industries Quarter,
with fear and perception of crime being induced in some pecple who use the area including
walking past the venue. The University is looking to make significant investment in
improvements to the public realm around the Cultural Industiies Quarter: The presence of
the Spearmint Rhino club defracts from the quality of the area rather than making a positive
contribution. As such, does not consider it appropriate to have

such a "sex establishment" in the locality,

The Policy states that the council will not license premises that it feels are in close proximity

to: -
a) a school, nursery or other premises substantially used by or for children under 16

years of age;

Page 81

L/ BV AY



b} a park or other recreational area used by or for children under 16 years of age;

c) a church or other place of religious worship;

d) a Hospital, Mental Incapacity or Disability Centre or similar premises;

e) the Cultural Hub of the City (i.e. close to the Peace Gardens and Tudor Square
etc.); and/or

f) a central gateway to the city or other city landmark, historic building or tourist
attraction,

The presence of a striptease club in the heart of lthe Cultural Industries Quarter is
inappropriate, with the focus of the area being arts, media and education mixed with
industrial heritage. Sheffield train station and the main transport interchange is just a
moment's walk from the venue providing a main gate way to and from the city centre and we
feel that having Spearmint Rhino in such a location gives & negative impression of Sheffield
and— A strip club in this area is clearly not in keeping with the
character of the relevant locality or the use of the premises in the vicinity. Indeed, we
consider it detrimental to the character of the locality and to those individuals who live, work

and visit the area.

The strip club is also directly adjacent to the Quarters’ only designated Public Space which is
probably not used to its full potential, likely to be down to the fact that it is next to a strip club.
Whilst not necessarily designed as such, this area could potentially be used by children as a
casual play or recreational area. The strip club is also direclly opposite Sheffield Hallam
University's Students Union which is a Social and Cultural Hub as well as providing advice
and services including counselling, equality, and disability, legal and personal issues.

According to Sheffield City Councils" Urban Design Statement, the venue is surrounded by
significant buildings of character, is within a Character Area and is adjacent to a Landmark

{SHU Students Union).

Sheffield City Council states that its vision for the Cultural Industries Quarter is 'to develop its
growing reputation as a thriving cultural enclave and will help to establish Sheffield as a
regionally and nationally significant centre for knowledge and creativity' and that ‘mixing of
uses within the Quarter could offer a diverse range of activity. These uses would
complement each other and nol inhibit the development of the Quarter as a vibrant cultural
destination'. We feel that Spearmint Rhino does not complement any of these attributes and
in fact works in total opposition to above statements and does not fall into the categories of

cuitural, artistic or educational.

The venue is not in close proximity to a church or places of worship; however a large
number of students studying at Sheffield Hallam University are religious and regularly visit
our Prayer Rooms and Multi-faith Chaplaincy located off Pond Street. They must walk past
Spearmint Rhino to get there. It is likely that a venue such as this may cause offence to

such students.

Sheffield Hallam University also has various Cultural and sociat hubs nearby inciuding Cafes
on Arundel Street and an art gallery in the Cantor Building. Other gallery spaces are often
used by Sheffield Hallam inciuding several venues on Brown Street and Paternoster Row.

Page 82

10



The issues raised above potentially fall under a number of the discretionary grounds for
refusing a licence, as set out in Appendix B of the Polcy. We believe that the following
grounds are relevant to Spearmint Rhino's application for renewal:

"(c) the number of sex establishments in the relevant locality at the time the application is
made is equal {o or exceeds the number which the autharity consider is appropriate for that
focality;

(d) the grant or renewal of the ficence would be inappropriate having regard-
(i) lo the character of the relevant locality;
(ii} to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put;

...Nif may be an appropriate number for the purposes of (¢) above"

With regards procedural matters, Paragraph 10(8) and (8) of Schedule 3 of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions} Act 1982 requires an advertisement to be published
in a local newspaper no later than 7 days after the application for renewal. This requirement
is also set out under Section 13 of the Policy. We have not been able to identify the relevant
advertisement in local newspapers and we would therefore be gratefu! if you could review
whether the correct procedure has been followed by Spearmint Rhino in that respect.

Yours sincerel

Page 83

77



APPENDIX C

Page 84 298



sSheffield City Council

Sexual Entertainment Yenues

Standard Conditions

KEY DEFINITIONS

The following terms are used frequently throughout this document:

LR = B B -

“The Councililicensing Authority” refers to Sheffield City Council

The “2009 Act” refers to the Policing and Crime Act 2009

The “1982 Act” refers to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982
The “2003 Act” refers to the Licensing Act 2003

“Section 27" refers to section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009

“Schedule 3” refers to schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 1882 as amended

“The Licensing Committee” refers to the committee of Sheffield City Council.
“Relevant Entertainiment” refers to: live performance and live displays of nudity,
provided solely or principally for the purposes of sexually stimulating any member of the
audience

“Nude” means in the case of a woman exposing her nipples, pubic area, genitals or
anus and in the case of a man, exposure of his pubic area, genitals or anus.

General Conditions

1.

[}

Rules shall be produced by the licensee for customers indicating conduct that is
permitted. These rules shaill be prominently displayed in any bar area, and at
sufficient other locations within the venue to ensure that they are brought to the
attention of customers.

No relevant entertainment provided shall be visible from the street or from any other
external area to which the public have access.

Performers shall not whilst Nude, whether engaged in relevant entertainment or not,
be visible from the street or from any other external area to which the public have
access.

The licence holder shall ensure that no staff or other persons engaged on their behalf
remain in any area of the premises which can be viewed from outside the premises,
or from any other area ouiside the premises, for the purpose of encouraging potential
customers into the premises.

Without the prior written consent of the Council there shall not be displayed outside
the premises, in the immediate vicinity, or elsewhere within the city any
advertisements, photographs or images that indicate or suggest that relevant
entertainment takes place on the premises.

There shall be prominently and legibly displayed a comprehensive tariff of all charges
and prices in respect of relevant entertainment, including any charge for the company

Sexual Entertainment Venue Standard Conditions 1

Published April 2011

Page 85 %
74



The

of any person working at the premises, which shall be illuminated and placed in such
a position that it can at all times be easily and conveniently be read by persons inside
the premises.

No charge shall be made to the customer for any food or drink provided for any

person working at the premises unless that customer has specifically ordered it
having first been made aware of the cost.

Premises

Colour CCTV will be provided and in working order in the premises, the positioning of
such cameras will be in liaison with the Police Licensing Officer and Crime Prevention
Department and shall comply with the minimum specification of the South Yorkshire
Police at the date of license issue.

CCTV recorded material should be kept secure for a period of 31 days and disclosed
to any Palice Officer or authorised officer of the Council.

No CCTV footage is to be copied, for the purpose of being given away or sold (except
as required by Police / Council for investigation / enforcement purposes). CCTV
footage may be distributed internally by licence holders (including to other group
premises) for the purposes of internal management and training.

Except in accordance with the requirements for CCTV as described above, no
photographs, films or video recordings shall be {aken of the performances. Nor shall
electronic transmissions of a performance be shown outside of the premises {(except
for the purpose of remote management of the premises and in those circumstances,
the licensee shall ensure that only those involved in management shall view any
photograph, fitm or recording).

Notices shall be displayed informing customers of the presence of CCTV.

An appropriate room shall be available as a change and rest area for performers.
Access to this room shall be restricted to performers and employees only whilst the
performers are on the premises. This room shall be marked on the plans.

The licence holder or his nominated deputy (who is authorised in writing), or door-
supervisors shall carry out regular monitoring of all areas of the premises to which the
public have access and shall intervene promptly, if necessary, to ensure compliance
with licence conditions.

Management Standards

1.

Training shall be provided to all members of management and staff regarding the
conditions of the licence, management practices and any relevant legislation to
ensure compliance with the same. A written record of all such training shall be
maintained at the premises and made available on request to the Police and
authorised officers of the Council.

2. The licensee shall not employ any person under 18 years of age in the business of
the establishment.
Sexual Entertainment Venue Standard Conditions 2

80



3. No person may provide relevant entertainment at the premises until such time as
photographic proof of identity showing date of birth is provided to the licence hoider,
confirming that the person is over the age of 18 years.

4. A record of any person employed or engaged at the premises, including name,
address, National Insurance number, photograph and date of birth will be retained in
a register at the premises. Such details are to be checked and verified by the licence
holder against other forms of identity. These records are then to be retained at the
premises for at least 12 months from the last day (date) of their employment and
made available to both Paolice Officers and authorised officers of the Council on
request.

5 A Signing-in’ register shall be kept at the premises that records the date, start time
and finish time of all person(s) involved in the relevant entertainment at the
premises. This shall be retained for a period of 12 months and made availabie for
immediate inspection by a Police Officer or authorised officers of the Council.

6. When the premises are open for relevant entertainment no person under the age of
18 shall be permitted to be on the premises. The licensee shall operate a Challenge
21 Policy and persons appearing to be under the age of 21 shall be required to show
proof of ID. A nofice to this effect shall be displayed in a prominent place at the
entrance to the premises and any other appropriate location (i.e. at the bar).

7. The licence holder must maintain an incident fog of any person(s) refused entry at
the premises and record the reason why such persons were refused entry. The log
shall be retained for a period of 12 months and the licence holder shall make the log
available fo any Police Officer or authorised officer of the Council on request.

8. A written code of conduct for those engaged in the relevant entertainment shall be
produced by the licence holder together with a disciplinary procedure for any
breaches of the code. The code of conduct shall prohibit activities that might be
thought to lead to prostitution, breaches of the licence or any other unlawful
activities. The Code shall be made available to the Police or authorised officers of
the Council on request.

The Protection of those Engaged in Relevant Entertainment / Prevention
of Crime and Disorder

1. Any person who is providing relevant entertainment, must be briefed verbally, or in
writing, by the iicence holder or his nominated deputy (authorised in writing) as to
the conditions that pertain to their particular premises and as to the code of conduct,
including the fact that their activities will be recorded on CCTV. The performer(s)
shall sign in a register that they have been briefed, any such register shall he
retained for 12 months and made available for inspection by any Police Officer or
authorised officer of the Council.

2. During any performance of relevant entertainment there must be no physical contact
between the performer and any member of the viewing public, except for the placing
of money / tokens in an item of clothing worn by a performer or into the performer’s
hand before or at the end of the performance and a customary kiss on the cheek of
the patron by the performer at the conclusion of the performance. A brief handshake
before or at the end of a performance is permitted.

Sexual Entertainment Venue Sitandard Conditions 3

Published April 2011 Page 87
2K i



There shall be no penetration of a performer's genitals or anus by any means.
Performers shall not engage in masturbation and or/oral sex.

Except with the consent of the performer and at their invitation no customer shall
participate in any relevant entertainment. Any customer participating must remain

seated during the performance.

No customer shall be required or encouraged to participate in any relevant
entertainment against their will.

No customer shali have any clothing removed during any relevant entertainment.

At the completion of the reievant entertainment the performers shall dress
themselves immediately and leave the designated performance area.

Whilst on the premises performers are not to solicit, exchange addresses or
telephone numbers with customers, or arrange lo liaise with customers off the
premises.

safety and Security

1. The licensee shall maintain good order in the premises at all times and shall ensure
that persons entering or leaving the licensed premises conduct themselves in an
orderly manner and do not in any way cause annoyance to residents and persons
passing by.

2. Relevant entertainment may only take place in ‘designated areas’ that are marked
on the plan of the premises submitted to the Licensing Service as part of their
application.

3. The licensee shall have in place and comply with a policy concerning the safety of
performers arriving at and leaving the premises. The policy shall be recorded in
writing and made available fo the Police or authorised officers of the Council on
request

4. The licensee or a nominated manager (in writing) shall be present on the premises
at all times whilst the relevant entertainment is taking place.

Sexual Entertainment Venue Standard Conditions 4

Published April 2011 Page 88

J #

82



Page 89

APPENDIX D

3



Annex 2 — Conditions atiached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority

KEY DEFINITIONS

The following terms are used frequently throughout the conditions:

a

“The Council/l.icensing Authority” refers to Sheffield City Council

The “2009 Act” refers to the Policing and Crime Act 2009

The “1982 Act” refers to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982

The “2003 Act” refers fo the Licensing Act 2003

“Section 27" refers to section 27 of the Policing and Grime Act 2009

“Scheduie 3” refers to schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act

1982 as amended

¢ “The Licensing Committee” refers to the commitiee of Sheffield City Council,

o “Relevant Entertainment” refers to: live performance and live displays of nudity, provided
solely or principally for the purposes of sexually stimulating any member of the audience

o “Nude” means in the case of a woman exposing her nipples, pubic area, genitals or anus

and in the case of @ man, exposure of his pubic area, genitals or anus.

]

o 2 o e

Ceneral Conditions

1. Rules shall be produced by the licensee for customers indicating conduct that is permitted.
These rules shall be prominently displayed in any bar area, and at sufficient other locations
within the venue to ensure that they are brought to the attention of customers.

2. No relevant entertainment provided shall be visible from the street or from any other external
area to which the public have access.

3. Performers shall not whilst Nude, whether engaged in relevant entertainment or not, be
visible from the street or from any other external area to which the public have access.

4. The licence holder shall ensure that no staff or other persons engaged on their behalf
remain in any area of the premises which can be viewed from outside the premises, or from
any other area outside the premises, for the purpose of encouraging potential customers into
the premises.

5. Without the prior written consent of the Council there shall not be displayed outside the
premises, in the immediate vicinity, or elsewhere within the city any advertisements,
photographs or images that indicate or suggest that relevant entertainment takes place on
the premises,

6. There shall be prominently and legibly displayed a comprehensive tariff of all charges and
prices in respect of relevant entertainment, including any charge for the company of any
person working at the premises, which shall be illuminated and placed in such a position that it
can at all times be easily and conveniently be read by persons inside the premises.

7. No charge shall be made to the customer for any food or drink provided for any person

working at the premises unless that customer has specifically ordered it having first been made
aware of the cost.

Page 90



The Premises

1. CCTV will be provided and in working order in the premises, the positioning of such
cameras will be in liaison with the Police Licensing Officer and Crime Prevention Department
and shall comply with the minimum specification of the South Yorkshire Police at the date of
license issue.

2. CCTV recorded material should be kept secure for a period of 31 days and disclosed to any
Police Officer or authorised officer of the Council.

3. No CCTV footage is to be copied, for the purpose of being given away or sold (except as
required by Police / Council for investigation / enforcement purposes). CCTV footage may be
distributed internally by licence holders (including to other group premises) for the purposes of
internal management and training.

4. Except in accordance with the requirements for CCTV as described above, no photographs,
films or video recordings shall be taken of the performances. Nor shall electronic
transmissions of a performance be shown outside of the premises (except for the purpose

of remote management of the premises and in those circumstances, the licensee shall ensure
that only those involved in management shall view any photograph, film or recording).

5. Notices shall be displayed informing customers of the presence of CCTV.

6. An appropriate room shall be available as a change and rest area for performers. Access o
this room shall be restricted to performers and employees only whilst the performers are on the
premises. This room shall be marked on the plans.

7. The licence holder or his nominated deputy (who is authorised in writing), or door-
supervisors shall carry out regular monitoring of all areas of the premises to which the public
have access and shall intervene promptly, if necessary, to ensure compliance with licence
conditions.

Management Standards

1. Training shall be provided to all members of management and staff regarding the conditions
of the licence, management practices and any relevant legislation to ensure compliance with
the same. A written record of all such training shall be mainiained at the premises and made
available on request to the Police and authorised officers of the Council.

2. The licensee shall hot employ any person under 18 years of age in the business of the
establishment. :

3. No person may provide relevant entertainment at the premises until such time as
photographic proof of identity showing date of hirth is provided to the licence holder, confirming
that the person is over the age of 18 years.

4. A record of any person employed or engaged at the premises, including name, address,
National Insurance number, photograph and date of birth will be retained in a register at the
premises. Such details are to be checked and verified by the licence holder against other
forms of identity. These records are then to be retained at the premises for at least 12 months
from the last day (date) of their employment and made availahle to both Police Officers and
authorised officers of the Council on request.

Page 91
g a4 LS



5. A 'Signing-in' register shall be kept at the premises that records the date, start time and
finish or cash out time of all person(s) involved in the relevant entertainment at the premises.
This shall be retained for a period of 12 months and made available for immediate inspection
by a Police Officer or authorised officers of the Council.

6. When the premises are open for relevant entertainment no person under the age of 18 shall
be permitted to be on the premises. The licensee shall operate a Challenge 21 Policy and
persons appearing to be under the age of 21 shall be required to show proof of ID. A notice to
this effect shall be displayed in a prominent place at the entrance to the premises and any
other appropriate location (i.e. at the bar).

7. The licence holder must maintain an incident log of any person(s) refused entry at the
premises and record the reason why such persons were refused entry. The log shall be
retained for a period of 12 months and the licence holder shall make the log available to any
Police Officer or authorised officer of the Council on request.

8. A written code of conduct for those engaged in the relevant entertainment shall be produced
by the licence holder together with a disciplinary procedure for any breaches of the code. The
code of conduct shall prohibit activities that might be thought to lead to prostitution, breaches
of the licence or any other unlawful activities. The Code shall be made available to the Police
or authorised officers of the Council on request.

The Protection of those Engaged in Relevant Entertainment / Prevention of Crime and
Disorder

1. Any person who is providing relevant entertainment, must be briefed verbally, or in writing,
by the licence holder or his nominated deputy (authorised in writing) as to the conditions that
pertain fo their particular premises and as to the code of conduct, including the fact that their
activities will be recorded on CCTV. The performer(s) shall sign in a register that they have
been briefed, any such register shali be retained for 12 months and made available for
inspection by any Police Officer or authorised officer of the Council.

2. (a) During any performance of relevant entertainment there must be no physical contact
between the performer and any member of the viewing public, except for the placing of money
/ tokens in an item of clothing worn by a performer or into the performer's hand before or at
the end of the performance and a customary kiss on the cheek of the patron by the performer
at the conclusion of the performance. A brief handshake before or at the end of a performance
is permitted.

(b) Notwithstanding paragraph (a) above, a performance which does not involve striptease or
nudity may involve a patron seated on a chair on the stage whilst dancers perform on the
stage around the patron and may include touching the patron's head and shoulders soley with
the performer's head and shoulder soley with the performers hands.

3. There shall be no penetration of a performer’s genitals or anus by any means.
4. Performers shall not engage in masturbation and or/oral sex.
5. Except with the consent of the performer and at their invitation no customer shall participate

in any relevant entertainment. Any customer participating must remain seated during
the performance.

Page 92
% <6



6. No customer shall be required or encouraged to participate in any relevant entertainment
against their will.

7. No customer shall have any clothing removed during any relevant entertainment.

8. At the completion of the relevant entertainment the performers shall dress themselves
immediately.

8. Whilst on the premises performers are not to solicit, exchange addresses or telephone
numbers with customers, or arrange to liaise with customers off the premises.

Safety and Security

1. The licensee shall maintain good order in the premises at all times and shall ensure that
persons entering or leaving the licensed premises conduct themselves in an orderly manner
and do not in any way cause annoyance to residents and persons passing by.

2. Relevant entertainment may only take place in 'designated areas' that are marked on the
plan of the premises submitted to the Licensing Service as part of their application.

3. The licensee shall have in place and comply with a policy concerning the safety of
performers arriving at and leaving the premises. The policy shall be recorded in writing and
made available to the Police or authorised officers of the Council on request

4. The licensee or a nominated manager (in writing) shall be present on the premises at all
times whilst the relevant entertainment is taking place.

Page 93

fn 7



Page 94

APPENDIX E

¥ 6%



SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL

LOCAL GOVERNMENT MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ACT 1982
Sexual Entertainment Venue — Spearmint Rhino, 80 Brown Street, Sheffield.
IMPORTANT: NOTIFICATION OF A COMMITTEE HEARING

To:  Angela Cromey
Jeffrey Green Russell
Waverley House
7-12 Noel Street
L.ondon
WIF 8GQ.

LEGISLATION: Local Goverament (Miscelianeous Provisions) Act 1982
LICENCE TYPE: Sexual Entertainment Venue (Renewal)
i refer to the above and an application for the renewal of a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence.

This matter has been referred to the Licensing Committee of Sheffield City Council for
determination. Full details will be provided in the report to the Commitiee which will be sent fo
you in due course. The Licensing Committee has the authority to decide what action to take in
relation to each application.

The Commitiee has indicated that it expects applicants and objectors to affend the
meeting.

The hearing in respect of the application will take place on 27" June 2013 in a Committee
Room of the Town Hall, Sheffield (Pinstone Street enirance) and you are invited to attend at
13:00 am.

PLEASE NOTE:
Fwouid be grateful if you could confirm that you will be attending the meeting by telephoning the

Licensing Of%ion 0114 2037752.

Date: 17" June 2013

Steve Lonnia
Chief Licensing Officer
Head of Licensing

Licensing Service, Business Strategy and Regulation, Block C Staniforth Road Depot, Staniforth
Road, Sheffield, S9 3HD
Telephone 0114 2037752

The Licensing Service is open from 2.00am to 5.00pm, fonday to Friday

Page 95 A Gq



SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL

LOCAL GOVERNMENT MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ACT 1982
Sexual Entertainment Venue — Spearmint Rhino, 60 Brown Street, Sheffield.
IMPORTANT: NOTIFICATION OF A COMMITTEE HEARING

To:

LEGISLATION: Locai Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982

LICENCE TYPE: Sexual Entertainment Venue (Renewal)
| refer to the above and an application for the renewal of a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence.

This matter has been referred to the Licensing Committee of Sheffieid City Council for
determination. Full details will be provided in the report to the Committee which will be sent to
you in due course. The Licensing Committee has the authority to decide what action to take in

relation to each application.

The Commitiee has indicated that it expects applicants and objectors fo attend the
meeting.

The hearing in respect of the application will take place on 27" June 2013 in a Committee
Room of the Town Hall, Sheffield (Pinstone Street entrance) and you are invited to attend at

10:G06 am.

PLEASE NOTE:
I would be grateful if you could confirm that you will be attending the meeting by telephoning the

Licensing Office on 0114 2037752.

%}mexw;;\_ Date: 17" June 2013

Steve Lonnia
Chief Licensing Officer
Head of Licensing

Licensing Service, Business Strategy and Regulation, Block C Staniforth Road Depot, Staniforth

Road, Sheffield, S9 3HD
Telephone 0114 2037752

The Licensing Service is open from 9.00am to 5.00pm, Monday to Friday

Page 96 4o



APPENDIX F

Page 97
ay <l



SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUES

COMMITTEE HEARING PROCEDURE

This procedure has been drawn up to assist those attending Sexual Entertainment Venue
Committee hearings. The hearing can be heard in two parts and may be held on separate
dates - objectors will be invited to attend Part One only. Part One will not apply if there are
no objectors,

The hearing before the Council is Quasi Judicial.

PART ONE

1. The Chair of the Licensing Sub-Committee will iniroduce the Sub-Committee and
ask officers to introduce themselves.

2. The Chair will ask the objectors (or nominated speakei(s) on behalf of the objectors)
fo formally introduce themselves,

3. The Solicitor to the Sub-Committee will outline the procedure to be followed in the
hearing.

4, Hearing Procedure:-

(a)  The Licensing Officer will introduce the report.

(b)  Questions concerning the report can be asked by Members.

{c}  The Licensing Officer will introduce in turn the objectors (or nominated
speakers) who will then be asked to detail the relevant representations. New
representations must not be raised.

{d)  The Chair of the Licensing Sub-Committee will invite members of the Sub-
Committee to put any relevant questions to the objectars

()  The Chair of the Licensir.g Sub-Committee wiil close Part One of the hearing.

PART TWO

1. The Chair of the Licensing Sub-Committee will intioduce the Sub-Committee and
ask officers to introduce themselves.

2. The Chair will ask the applicants to formally introduce themselves,

3. The Solicitor to the Sub-Committee will outfine the procedure to be followed in the
hearing.

4. Hearing Procedure:-

(a) The Licensing Officer will introduce the report
(b) Questions concemning the report can be asked both by Members and the

applicant.

Page 98
B G2



{c} The applicantfticensee (or histher nominated representative) will then be asked

to:-

iy Present their case to the Sub-Committiee and respond to any objections
made;

i}y  Call on any witness in support of their applicalion;

(d) The Chair of the Licensing Sub-Commitiee will invite Members of the Sub-
Committee to put any relevant guestions to the applicant/licensee (or his/her
nominated representative) and/or any witnesses who speak.

(e) The applicant will be invited to briefly sum up the application.

{f) The Licensing Officer will then detail the options.

(g) There will then be a private session for Members to take legal advice and

consider the application.

5. The decision of the Licensing Sub-Committee will be conveyed in writing following
the hearing, to the applicant/licensee (or his/her representative).

6. Objectors will receive a copy of the written notification of the Sub-Committee’s
decision sent to the applicant, if they have advised the Licensing Authority that they
wish to do so. The decision will aiso be made available on the Council’s website.

NB: At any time in the Licensing Process Members of the Sub-Committee may request
legal advice from the Solicitor to the Sub-Committee. This advice may be given in

open session or in private.

Procedure for all parties — January 2012 2

Page 99

e

93



Page 100

APPENDIX G

T



Dﬁ%@&’@&ﬁ@ﬂ&ﬁ“y Grounds for Refusing a Licence

The Council may refuse the grant or renewal of a licence in the following circumstances:-

(a}) the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having been
convicted of an offence or for any other reason;

(b} if the licence were to be granted, renewed or transferred the business to
which it refates would be managed by or carried on for the benefit of a
person, other than the applicant, who would be refused the grant, renewal or
transfer of such a licence if he made the application himself;

(¢} the number of sex establishments in the relevant locality at the time the
application is made is equal to or exceeds the number which the authority
consider is appropriate for that locality;

(d)  the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, having regard-—
(i) to the character of the relevant locality; or
(ii) to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or
(i) to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or
stall in respect of which the application is made.
Nil may be an appropriate number for the purposes of () above.

The Council may refuse the transfer of a licence only in the circumstances of (a) and (b)
above.,

Page 101

-



Page 102



	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 - Sexual Entertainment Venues - Spearmint Rhino, 60 Brown Street, S1 2BS

